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JclTrey A. Meyers 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 0330J
Commissioner 603-27M501 1-800-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director

March 12, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a sole source amendment to an existing agreement with JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, Vendor #161611-6001, 501 South
Street, 2"^ Floor, Bow, NH 03304 to provide a broad range of support services across a number
of public health programs by increasing the price limitation by $342,125 from $1,578,580 to
$1,920,705, effective upon date of Governor and Council approval, with no change to the
completion date of June 30, 2019. 81.61% Federal Funds, 12.54% General Funds, and 5.85%
Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21,
2017 (Item #51), as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #8).

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2018 and 2019,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances betv^^een
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without approval from Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.

FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED.

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the amount of additional funding exceeds ten
percent (10%) of the original contract value and because the Department is adding to the current
scope of work for the contract period. These additional services are required to effectively
implement activities included in the Division's federal funding agreements for the current state
fiscal year.

The funding contained in this Contract will pay for implementing a statewide opioid related
vulnerability assessment as part of the Department's response to the opioid crisis; facilitate
meetings of the Home Visiting Task Force and its workgroups; conduct 10 (ten) jurisdictional risk
assessments addressing public health emergencies; procure and distribute additional H|V
testing supplies based on an increase in need; distribute funding to support 13 (thirteen) regional
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Medical Reserve Corps units and 2 (two) Regional Public Health Networks to regional priorities
addressing environmental public health issues; and develop outreach materials to support the
Regional Public Health Networks.

The Contractor currently provides a broad range of public health professional support
services including, but not limited to developing and implementing risk and needs assessments;
training programs; developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences
as well as smaller meetings and' conferences; serving as a fiscal agent for the Department,
including entering into subcontracts; providing technical assistance to local partners; and
providing subject matter expertise.

The funding provided through this amendment will be used to fund and expand the
following support services:

• Opioid Assessment services: The contractor will conduct a statewide HIV and viral
hepatitis community vulnerability assessment in order to identify areas of the state
that can be targeted for services to prevent the transmission of these infections in
people with substance use disorder. This activity is a requirement of federal opioid
crisis funding.

•  Public Health Emergency Preparedness services: The contractor will conduct
Jurisdictional Risk Assessments in collaboration with at least 10 (ten) public health
preparedness coordinators from the 13 (thirteen) organizations funded to provide
Public Health Network services. These assessments will be used to identify the
public health threats of greatest concern in each region and to develop strategies
to mitigate them. This activity is a requirement of federal preparedness funding.
The contractor will also increase the amount of funding in current subcontracts that
support 13 (thirteen) regional Medical Reserve Corps units.

•  HIV Prevention services: The contractor will purchase and distribute additional HIV
testing supplies to community partners to meet an increase in need due to the
opioid epidemic. Early diagnosis and treatment of people infected with HIV helps to
prevent further transmission of this virus in the community and improves health
outcomes for people living with HIV. In addition, funds will be utilized to bring
together community stakeholders to address the goals of the NH HIV Integrated
Plan to end HIV in NH and to support targeted media and marketing efforts to
promote the prevention of HIV among those at highest risk of acquiring the
infection.

•  Environmental Public Health Tracking services: The contractor will increase the
amount of funding in current subcontracts with 2 (two) Regional Public Health
Networks to develop and distribute training materials related to reducing health
risks from the environment and utilize these materials during in-person trainings
and workshops with regional partners.

• Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program services: The
contractor will facilitate and provide logistical support to Home Visiting Task Force
Meetings and participation in workgroup meetings, such as Data System, Strategic
Planning, and Communications workgroups; conduct a strategic planning session
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of the Parent Advisory Council; and increase the current technical assistance and
accreditation support for Home Visiting Programs funded by the Department.

•  Preventative Health and Services Block Grant programs: The contractor will
develop outreach materials to increase the level of awareness of the Regional
Public Health Networks.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the
Department may amend the current agreement, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will lack the ability to collect and analyze data necessary to conduct jurisdictional risk
assessments in accordance with CDC requirements, procure and distribute necessary additional
HIV testing supplies, conduct a statewide opioid related vulnerability assessments in accordance
with CDC requirements; support an increased level of activity in the 13 (thirteen) Medical
Reserve Corps units and 3 (three) Regional Public Health Networks addressing environmental
health problems; and support the Home Visiting Task Force and Parent Advisory Council.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 81.61% Federal (the Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Program, the Hospital Preparedness Program, the Environmental Public Health
Tracking Program, the Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program, the
Preventative Health and Services Block Grant Program, the HIV Integrated Prevention and
Surveillance Program, and the Opioid Assessment Program), 12.54% General (the Public Health
Emergency Preparedness Program), and 5.85% Other (Pharmaceutical Rebates).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

jffrey At Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Miasion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS, 67% Federal, 33% General

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 0 $115,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $115,000 $130,000 $245,000

Sub Total $230,000 $130,000 $360,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS, 100% Federal '

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified^
Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 0 $70,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $70,000 0 $70,000

Sub Total $140,000 0 $140,000

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION
PROGRAM, 100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 0 $65,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 0 $65,000

Sub Total $130,000 0 $130,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES, 100% Other

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $183,800 0 $183,800

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $113,800 $20,000 $133,800

Sub Total $297,600 $20,000 $317,600

Page 1 of 3



05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current/

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $18,000 0 $18,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $18,000 0 $18,000

Sub Total $36,000 0 $36,000

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
TRACKING, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $50,000 0 $50,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $50,000 $20,000 $70,000

Sub Total $100,000 $20,000 $120,000

05-95-90-901510-7984 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PROTECTION, 100%
Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount '

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 $36,000 0 $36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $50,000 0 $50,000

Sub Total

SFY 2018
$86,000 0 $86,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 $9,000 0 $9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $40,000 0 $40,000

Sub Total

SFY 2019
$49,000 0 $49,000

Sub Total $135,000 0 $135,000

05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ACA HOME
VISITING X02 FORMULA GRANT, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083200 $221,990 0 $221,990

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083200 $221,990 $25,579 $247,569

Sub Total $443,980 $25,579 $469,559
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05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, MATERNAL -
CHILD HEALTH, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 $24,000 0 $24,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 $24,000 0 $24,000

Sub Total $48,000 0 $48,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, RADIOLOGICAL
EMERGENCY RESPONSE, 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9,000 0 $9,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9,000 0 $9,000

Sub Total $18,000 $0 $18,000

05-95-90-902510-7536 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9002400 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9002400 0 $75,000 $75,000

Sub Total 0 $75,000 $75,000

05-95-90-901010-5362 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY, AND PERFORMANCE,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9001022 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9001022 0 $15,000 $15,000

Sub Total 0 $15,000 $15,000

05-95-90-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS
RESPONSE. 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 0 $56,546 $56,546

Sub Total 0 $56,546 $56,546

TOTAL $1,578,580 $342,125 $1,920,705
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen DrJ Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

gov/doit

March 18,2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to amend an existing contract with JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2018-
0298.

The purpose of this contract amendment is for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., to
continue to provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of
public health programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing a
statewide opioid related vulnerability assessment to inform the implementation of
prevention and intervention services as part |of the Department of Health and Human
Services response to the opioid crisis.

The funding amount for this amendment is $342,125, increasing the current contract from
$1,578,580, to an amount not to exceed $1,920,705 and is effective upon the date of
Governor and Council approval, with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department ofHealth and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

DG/kaf

DoIT #2018-0298

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

Denis Goulet

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the

Public Health Professional Support Services

This 2nd Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #2") dated this 12th day of October, 2018, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit agency with a place of business at 501 South
Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #51), and as amended (Amendment #1) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope of work
and the payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.6 Account Number, to read 05-95-90-902510-7545, 05-95-90-
902510-2239, 05-95-90-902510-5178, 05-95-90-902510-2229, 05-95-90-902510-5390, 05-95-
90-900510-5173, 05-95-90-902510-7964, 05-95-90-902010-5896, 05-95-90-902010-5190, 05-
95-90-901510-5299, 05-095-090-902510-7536,05-95-90-901010-5362, & 05-95-90-902510-
7039.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,920,705.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety, and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #2,
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment in Its entirety, and replace with
Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Emergency ,
Preparedness, SFY 2019 in its entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional
Support Services - Public Health Emergency Preparedness, SFY 2019 Amendment #2.

Community Heatth Institute Amendment #2
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 1 of4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Servicos

8. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV Prevention, SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

9. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Pharmaceutical Rebates - SPY
2019 in its entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Sen/ices -
Pharmaceutical Rebates - SPY 2019 Amendment #2.

10. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT, SPY 2019 in its entirety,
and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT, SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

11. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting, SPY 2019 in its
entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home
Visiting, SPY 2019 Amendment #2.

12. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - PHHS Block Grant, SPY 2019
Amendment #2. '

13. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Opioid Assessment, SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

Community Health Institute Amendment U2
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

This amendment shaii be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Councii approvai.
IN WilNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written beiow,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Heaith and Human Services

Date Name;

Title:

JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community
Health institute

art

tor

January 24, 2019

Date Name: Joi4a;Ha
Title: Regional Di

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire County of Merrimack January 24, 2019
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature (Rotary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and 7ltle.^of,'Nbtary or Justice of the Peace

DGBRA L LOVE, Notary Pubflc
My Oommtakm Dtptres September 5,2023

:My Cornmission Expires:

Community Health Institute Amendment #2
RFP.2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

7

<3Na

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Health Institute Amendment #2
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Pafle 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1.^ The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they

will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their

programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire

General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services

described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure

requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for

services provided after June 30,2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services

has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019

biennia.

2. Scope of Services
The Contractor shall:

2.1. Provide a broad range of public health professional support services including, but not

limited to; developing and implementing training programs; conducting needs assessments;

developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences; and making
subject matter experts available to Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),

Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) contractors.

2.2. Increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to provide

high-quality public health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across

this range of services and program areas that include: transparent and informed community
planning processes; high-quality educational materials, conferences and training programs;

knowledge and skills-building among DPHS contracted agencies; timely and efficient
administrative processes; and effective evaluation of programs.

2.3. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

2.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for ongoing
committees/planning groups as defined in Attachment F.

2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.4.1. Provide logistical support to the New England Lead Coordinating Committee (NELCC).

This includes up to 12 regular meetings of the full NELCC and up to 2 of committee/

workgroup meetings per year. Information about the NELCC is available at:

http://www.newenglandlead.org/.

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute '
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 1 of 12 Date 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking

2.5.1. Provide logistical support to host up to 10 meetings with Regional Public Health

Networks to gather feedback on the EPHT Data Portal.

2.5.2. Provide logistical support for up to 5 focus groups to conduct user research of EPHT

data and projects.

2.6. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.6.1. Provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG). This includes up to 6

regular meetings of the full HPG and up to 30 of committee/workgroup meetings per
year. More information about the HIV HPG is available at: nhhiv.org.

2.7. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and Child

Health Section (MCH):

2.7.1. Provide logistical support to quarterly conference calls for three, peer-based caucuses.

The caucuses will be role based (e.g. supervisors, home visitors, and quality

improvement staff).

2.7.2. Provide logistical support for the Home Visiting Task Force, formerly known as the Home

Visiting Coordinating Council at least quarterly. This group serves as the MIECHV
Advisory Group and is made up of collaborating partners and others in the state with an

interest and background in home visiting.

2.7.3. Participate in Data Systems; Strategic Planning; and Communications workgroup

meetings.

2.8. Develop and Implement Training Programs

2.8.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or implement training

programs based on adult learning theories that use various training modalities (i.e.

classroom, web-based, training of trainers, etc.) to maximize the reach of these

programs.

2.8.1.1. Food Protection Section (FPS):

2.8.1.1.1. In consultation with Food Protection Staff develop training curricula for three
discrete audiences:

2.8.1.1.1.1. DPHS FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) inspectors in
municipalities that regulate FSE. A list of these municipalities is
available at:

http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/fp/documents/selfinspect.pdf

2.8.1.1.1.2. Staff from state agencies that conduct food safety inspections as one
component of a more comprehensive operational inspection. This
includes Department of Environmental Services Youth Camp inspection
staff, DHHS Health Facilities Licensing staff (which inspects child care
centers, nursing homes and assisted living facilities).

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute , /od/i o
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PU8LIC Page 2 of 12 Date ̂ '^^'^'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.8.1.1.1.3. Food Service Workers including, but not limited to workers in
restaurants, retail food stores, schools, and caterers.

2.8.1.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness:

2.8.1.2.1. Develop and implement training programs for two discrete audiences:

2.8.1.2.1.1. RPHN emergency preparedness coordinators

2.8.1.2.1.2. Local municipal officials, healthcare preparedness personnel,
volunteers and others engaged in regional PHEP planning and
response.

2.8.1.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.8.1.3.1. Plan and implement the 1-day Renovation, Repair and Painting Training
programs in New Hampshire's highest risk communities using the US
Environmental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.8.1.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal

and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.8.1.4.1. In consultation with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs
assessment for the 11 MIECHV contracted home visiting sites.

2.8.1.4.2. Develop and implement an annual training plan (which will include site
specific training plans), including evaluation, from the information garnered
from the training needs assessment. At a minimum, ten (10) training
accessible opportunities should be offered per MIECHV funded home visiting
site per year. An opportunity is defined as a pre-existing training, which the
contractor pays home visiting staff to attend (can be out of state) and
trainings which are provided by the contractor. These can be offered
electronically (webinars, etc.) or in-person.

2.9. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

2.9.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for
conferences as defined by the DPHS in the original Request for Proposal.

2.9.1.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.9.1.1.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the NELCC's annual conference
for up to 300 attendees. Provide logistical and planning support for four
regional dinner meetings for up to 120 attendees each.

2.9.1.2. Immunization Program

2.9.1.2.1. Provide logistical support for the annual Immunization Conference for
approximately 400 attendees.

2.9.1.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.9.1.3.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the annual NH Statewide
Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.9.1.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section
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2.9.1.4.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the bi-annual NH STD, HIV,
Hepatitis, TB conference for up to 250 attendees. Planning support includes
provision of continuing education credits.

2.9.1.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section

2.9.1.5.1. Provide logistical and planning support, including evaluation, to semi-annual
conferences-learning exchanges (fall and spring) for up to 55 staff at
MIECHV contracted sites. The spring 2018 trainlngsvill focus on Healthy
Families America required content training for continued certification. The fall
training 2018 will be based on findings from the needs assessment.

2.9.1.5.2. Provide logistical and planning support for at least two half or full day in-
person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.10. Provide Technical Assistance

2.10.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.1.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide technical assistance to
three discrete groups directed toward their meeting the national standards
described in the U.S. Centers foV Disease Control and Prevention's (CDC) Public
Health Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011) and subsequent editions;

2.10.1.1.1. DPHS/Emergency Services Unit (ESU) preparedness staff

2.10.1.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators at the 13 organizations funded by
DPHS to provide Regional Public Health Network services. TA will be
available to both individuals and as a group.

2.10.1.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps units recognized by the registered with the U.S.
Surgeon General, Office of the Civilian Volunteer Medical Reserve Corps, to
support recruitment, training and deployment of the MRC volunteers.

2.10.1.2. Conduct Jurisdlctional Risk Assessments in accordance with CDC requirements
in collaboration with at least ten (10) public health preparedness coordinators from
the thirteen (13) organizations funded to provide Public Health Network services.

2.10.1.3. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, identify and coordinate the
availability of technical assistance providers to DPHS contractors and service
provider agencies.

2.10.1.4. Develop and produce educational materials

2.10.1.4.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or produce
educational materials on topics determined by DPHS staff. All materials shall
be developed in accordance with CDC recommendations contained in Simply
Put: Guide to Developing Easy-To-Understand Materials, CDC July 2010,
available at: https://www.cdc.gov/healthliteracy/pdf/Simply_Put.pdf

2.10.1.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking, Program (EPHT)

2.10.1.5.1. Develop educational materials targeted to public health professionals,
emergency preparedness officials, and local partners to increase knowledge
and understanding of the EPHT program at the state and local levels.
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2.10.1.6. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)

2.10.1.6.1. Develop educational materials in collaboration with the HHLPPP to target to
clinicians, contractors, and families to increase knowledge and understanding
of best practices relative to Screening and Management Guidelines, lead-
safe work practices, and keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.10.1.7. Immunization Program

2.10.1.7.1. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the Immunization Information System (IIS).

2.10.1.7.2. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the benefits of immunizations across the lifespan.

2.10.1.8. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.8.1. In consultation with DPHS, maintain and update the NH HIV Planning Group
(HPG) website.

2.10.1.9. Community Health Development Section

2.10.1.9.1. Develop educational materials to increase awareness of regional Public
Health Advisory Councils.

2.10.1.10. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section

2.10.1.10.1. Provide Continuous Quality Improvement technical assistance through
site visits and phone consultations to support local implementing agencies
funded by DPHS that seek accreditation from the Health Families America
accreditation board.

2.10.2. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

2.10.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop evaluation plans that
clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
measures.

2.10.2.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.2.2.1. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects that meets
criteria outlined by CDC and fulfills federal requirements. This document will
facilitate programming planning, implementation, and evaluation.

2.10.2.2.2. Develop and Implement a plan to evaluate previously funded HHLPPP
projects that addressed dissemination techniques and understanding of the
2015 Lead Surveillance Report and the Childhood Lead Screening and
Management Guidelines.

2.10.2.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.10.2.3.1. Implement current MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan

2.10.2.3.2. Participate In updating the MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan.

2.10.3. Update Strategic Plans
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2.10.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, update pre-existing strategic
plans that clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
performance measures.

2.10.3.2. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.3.2.1. Update the 2010 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.

2.11. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

2.11.1. As directed by DPHS staff, serve as fiscal agent to maximize the efficient use of
resources as follows;

2.11.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.11.2.1. Enter into up to 3 mini-grants with vendors funded by DPHS to provide Regional
Public Health Networks sen/ices. A list of currently funded vendors is available at:
http://www.dhhs.nh.aov/dPhs/rDhn/index.htm.

2.11.2.2. Subcontract with mini-grant recipients funded by DPHS to provide Regional
Public Health Networks services in order to increase the amount of funds and amend

work plans.

2.11.3. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

2.11.3.1. Reimburse costs incurred by approximately 5 public members of the HPG to
attend out-of-state conferences identified by the DPHS and mileage costs to attend
in-state meetings. The purpose is to increase the knowledge and skills of the public
members of the HPG.

2.11.3.2. Procure prevention supplies as determined by the IDPICSS to an additional six
(6) clinics funded by the IDPICSS to provide testing and treatment for sexually
transmitted infections and human immunodeficiency virus.

2.11.3.3. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to provide
consultation and technical assistance on the production of a digital storytelling
project, including coordination, development and implementation of a digital
storytelling workshop: production of a digital storytelling electronic file for up to eight
stories and training of participants in conducting an engagement session with
stakeholders.

2.11.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.11.4.1. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to procure E-Studio,
a web-based collaboration system currently in use at DPHS.

2.11.4.2. Subcontract with 13 Medical Reserve Corps units to build capacity to staff
emergency response facilities during public health emergencies.

2.11.4.3. Enter into subcontracts with up to 4 individuals identified by the DPHS to
participate in radiological emergency planning, training and exercises to build staffing
capacity to respond to radiological emergencies.

2.11.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):
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2.11.5.1. Support at least two MIECHV funded home visiting agency staff selected by the
DHHS to attend the annual MIECHV grantee conference.

2.11.5.2. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to research and
Identify methods to Increase utilization of postpartum visits by home visiting families.

2.12. HIV and Hepatitis Community Vulnerability Assessments-

2.12.1. The Contractor shall design methodology, including but not limited to:

2.12.1.1. Working with the Department's Bureau of Infectious Disease Control
(BICD) to organize and engage a stakeholder group (Stakeholder Group) to
provide input on the vulnerability assessment design, methods, expected

output and outcomes;

2.12.1.2. Review current literature describing similar Vulnerability Assessments to

inform the study design;

2.12.1.3. Work with the BICD to coordinate technical assistance potentially

available from the Center for Disease Control and Prevention for study design

and interpretation of results;

2.12.2. The Contractor shall assemble data, including but not limited to:

2.12.2.1. Working with the BICD to develop data use agreements, as applicable, to

obtain data for the assessment to include data on:

2.12.2.1.1. Overdose mortality and morbidity;

2.12.2.1.2. Emergency medical service and emergency department

utilization;

2.12.2.1.3. Incidence of bloodborne infections associated with non-sterile

drug injection;

2.12.2.2. Obtaining other relevant data for the Vulnerability Assessment to include:

2.12.2.2.1. Demographic data, Medication Assisted Treatment capacity;

2.12.2.2.2. Other substance-use related treatment capacity;

2.12.2.2.3. Controlled drug prescription rates; and

2.12.2.2.4. Public safety data;

2.12.2.3. With geographical context, to the extent such data is available, sufficient

to conduct analyses to facilitate resource targeting;

2.12.2.4. Any work performed by the Contractor as part of these initiatives shall

comply with all state rules, and state and federal laws as required to

safeguard the confidentiality of the information, and to comply with 42 CFR

part 2 as applicable.

2.12.3. The Contractor shall conduct analyses for the Vulnerability Assessment,

including but not limited to:
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2.12.3.1. Completing statistical analyses following design and modeling
procedures as defined in collaboration with the Stakeholder Group

2.12.3.2. Work with the BICD and the Stakeholder Group to review interim findings;

2.12.3.3. Refine the analysis as necessary and possible with additional data,

methodological variations or innovations;

2.12.3.4. Complete the analysis for different sub-geographies of the state as
determined in conjunction with BICD and the Stakeholder Group.

2.12.4. The Contractor shall disseminate and apply findings of the Vulnerability
Assessment by use of the following methods:

2.12.4.1. Produce jurisdictional maps identifying high-risk areas identified through

the assessment process;

2.12.4.2. Distribute findings to key stakeholders in formats that support action;

2.12.4.3. Presenting at public health and healthcare provider meetings;

2.12.4.4. Creating fact sheets or report cards for geographic sub-regions of New

Hampshire;

2.12.4.5. Publishing findings in professional journals;

2.12.4.6. Use the findings from the assessment to assist the Department in the
development of plans that strategically allocate prevention and intervention
services.

3. Staffing

The Contractor shall:

3.1. Provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this Contract and shall maintain a

level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions, requirements, roles,
and duties in a timely fashion to meet the scope of work

3.2. Ensure staffing structure includes a contract administrator to administer all scopes of work
relative to this Contract, as well as progress and finance reporting.

3.3. Ensure that across all funded positions, in addition to subject matter expertise, there is a
combined level of expertise, skills and ability to understand data; use data for planning and
evaluation; community engagement and collaboration; group facilitation skills; and IT skills in
order to function as a team, ideally with complementary skill and abilities across these

foundational areas of expertise and abilities.

3.4. Ensure that policies and procedures consistent with state and federal laws are in place to
adequately and appropriately train staff to safeguard any individual confidential information
or protected health information that they may have access to while performing their duties
for the Contractor.
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3.5. Ensure that personnel are available during normal business hours, at a minimum Monday

through Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.

4. Outcomes I Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are annually
achieved and monitored rrionthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

4.2. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

4.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

4.2.1.1. At least 65% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.2.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.2.3.1. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Task Force, formerly
known as the Home Visiting Coordinating Council, meetings as either "excellent"
or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

4.3.1. Food Protection Section

4.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excellent"
or "very good"

4.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.3.2.1. The training modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

4.3.2.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.3.3.1. The training module is rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

4.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.3.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.3.4.1. Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.
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4.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey. At least 85% of participants in the Parent Advisory
Council trainings rate the training programs as either "excellent" or "very good" in an
evaluation survey.

4.4. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences \

4.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2. Immunization Program

4.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.4.3.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.5. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

4.4.5.1. At least 85% of learning exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.5. Provide Technical Assistance ■

4.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

4.5.1.2. Publish 10 Jurisdictional Risk Assessment reports.

4.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.5.3.

4.5.3.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

4.6. Develop and produce educational materials

4.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program
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4.6.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.3. Immunization Program

4.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

4.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

4.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.

4.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.

4.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

4.7.3.1. Implementation of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

4.7.3.2. Participate in at least 80% of the Continuous Quality Improvement planning
meetings.

4.8. Update Strategic Plans

4.8.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
State Plan.

4.8.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the Home Visiting Task Force strategic planning
session as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

4.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.

4.9.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.9.2.1. Target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

4.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the
distribution date.
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4.9.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postpartum visit project executed as directed by
DPHS.

4.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.

4.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.

4.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four individuals executed as directed by DPHS.

4.10. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for

any performance measure that was not achieved.

5. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor shall:

5.1. Be responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention Is

called to the following statutory responsibilities:

5.2. Publications funded under this contract shall be responsible to adhere to the requirements in

Exhibit C Special Provisions, Paragraph 14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to quality health services and provide culturally

and linguistically appropriate services and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special

Provisions, Paragraph 16. Limited English Proficiency (LEP).

5.4. DHHS recognizes that Contractors may choose to use subcontractors with specific expertise

to perform certain services or functions for efficiency or convenience. However, the

Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s) for any

services required by this Contract that are provided, in whole or in part, by a subcontracted

agency or provider, and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special Provisions,

Paragraph 19. Subcontractors of this Contract.

5.5. Adhere to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act requirements to maintain

the confidentiality of protected health information provided by individuals who contact the

poison control center in Exhibit I Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate and

any applicable state rule or other state or federal law.

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are annually achieved and

monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract is funded with Funds from:

1.1.1. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.069, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TPQ00535,

1.1.2. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.889, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TP000535,

1.1.3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2013 Cooperative Agreement Application for the
Immunization, Vaccine for Children, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.539,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 231P000757,

1.1.4. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program -
Network Implementation, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.070, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN) # NU38EH000947,

1.1.5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, NH - Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.753, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#NUE1EH001271.

1.1.6. US Environmental Protection Agency, Lead 404(g) Training and Certification, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 66.707, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 99151215.

1.1.7. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#X10MC29490.

1.1.8. US Department of Health' and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.994, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) # BO4MC30627.

1.1.9. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Preventative Health and Health Services Block
Grant, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.758, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) # NB010T009141.

1.1.10. Health and Social Services, Department of Health and Human Services, HHS: Division of Public
Health, Bureau of Infectious Disease Control, Public Health Crisis Response, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.354, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)
#U90TP921693.

1.1.11. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, PS 18-1802 HIV Integrated Prevention and
Surveillance Programs, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.940, Federal Award
Identification (FAIN) # U62PS9244538.

1.1.12. Other Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

1.1.13. Genera! Funds.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the
funded contractor's current and/or future funding.
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2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of
this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget line items.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of
each month, which Identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior
month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to
initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. Contractors will
keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37,
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbillinG@dhhs.nh.QOv. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit B, Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute TnTno
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBI.IC Paoe2of2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a

Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Services • Public Health Emergency
Budget Request for: Preparedness

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment #2

Llhe.ltem.V'".'

■ Direct:' "

'■ Incremental"

•Indirect v :■ Total , ' \
'Fixed " ' "r

Allocation Method for

indirect/Fixed Cost
1. Total SalaryWages $  47.297.30
2. Employee Benefits $  17,972.97
3. Consuttants
4. Equipment; (includes Rentals.
Repair & Maintenance. Purchase &
Depreciation) $  1,418.92
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab. Pharmacy. Medical,
Office) $  3,310.81
6. Travel
7. Occupancy $  4,729.73
8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone. Postage, Subscriptions.
Audit & Legal. Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  3,783.78
9. Software
10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training 945.95
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Medical Reserve Corps Mini-Grants $  30,000.00
Meeting & Training Supplies $  12,500.00

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin
Payroll and Accounting

TOTAL $  121.959.46

$  2,601.35
$  1,418.92
$  1,418.92
$  2,601.35

$  8,040.54

$ 47,297.30
$ 17,972.97

$  1,418.92

$  3,310.81

$ 4,729.73

$  3,783.78
$
$
$  945.95

$
$ 30,000.00
$ 12,500.00
$ 2,601.35

The federally approved
Negotiated Indirect Cost

Rate Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.

includes fringe benefits
(38% of salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities

including occupancy,
equipment, general office

supplies,
telecommunications and
other current expenses,

information systems,
accounting and payroll,

human resources and staff
development, and general

administrative support
costs. The approved

basis for application of the
NICRA is on

salary/wages only
including holiday, sick and

vacation.

$  1,418.92
$  1,418.92
$  2,601.35
$
$130.000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.6%

Page l of l

Contractor Initials:

Date: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Communitv Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budaet Request for: Services • HIV Prevention

(Name of RFP)

Budaet Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment #2

Line Item v '

u'- Direct L . Indlrectr..:^ -';Total. .v. AMocatlon Method for
i  Incremental '. " .'Fixed'' - ••*'V "• , . 'Indlrect/Flxecl Cbstr*

1. Total Salary/Wages $  9,730.00 $  9,730.00 The federally approved
2. Emplovee Benefits $  3.697.40 $  3,697.40 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants v $  . Hate Agreement (niuha)

4. Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  291.90

tor Jbl Hesearch and

$  291 90 Training Institute. Inc.
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education, Lab,
Pharmacy, Medical. Office) $  681.10 S  681 10 (33% Of salary) and other
6. Travel $
7. Occupancy $  973.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage,
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  778.40

equipment, general office
supplies.

$  778.40 telecommunications and

9. Software $  • other current expenses.

10. Marketing/Communications $  . intormation systems.

11. Staff Education and Training $  194.60 $  194.60 accounting ana payroll.

12. Subcontracts/Agreements ^  . numan resources and siati

13. Other (specific details mandatory):
^  . duvulupiMunl, and guiieiul

HPG Member Reimbursements

Conference Support
Prevention Supplies $  13,000.00 - $ 13,000.00 NirPA ii on
Meeting Expenses $  25,440.00

Website Maintenance

Subscription Services $  - vacfllion.
Other Professionai Support Services $

Special Projects $  18,559.50 $ 18,559.50

Information Systems $535.15 $  535.15

HR $291.90 $  291.90

Gen Admin $291.90 $  291.90

Payroii and Accountinp $535.15 $  535.15

$ $ $

TOTAL $  73,345.90 $1,654.10 $ 75,000.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 2.3%

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name; d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for; Services • Pharmaceutical Rebates

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 1 Amendment #2

Llrieltem"' ' .v
;ij. Direct
-Incremental

.Indirect

•  Fixed *•'

*, \...To^l .. Allocatlort.Methpd-for

Indirect/Fixed Cost **
1. Total Salary/Wages $ The federally approved
2. Emplovee Benefits $ Negotiated Indirect Cost

3. Consultants $ Rate Agreement (NICRA)

4. Equipment; (Includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $

for JSI Research end

Training Institute, Inc.
includes Iringe benefits

(38% of salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities
including occupancy,

equipment, general office
supplies,

telecommunications and

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education, Lab,
Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $
6. Travel $
7. Occupancy $
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage,
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $
9. Software $ other current expenses.

10. Marketlna/Communications $
information systems.

11. Staff Education and Traininq $
accounting and payroll,

human resources and staff

development, and general
administrative support
costs. The approved

basis for application of the

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $

HPG Member Reimbursements $
Conference Support $
Prevention Supplies $  10,000.00 $ 10,000.00
Meeting Expenses $ salary/wages only

Website Maintenance $ including holiday, sick and
Subscription Services $ vacation.

Other Professional Support Services $
Special Projects $  10,000.00 $ 10,000.00

Information Systems $
HR $

Gen Admin $
Payroll and Accountina $

$ $ $

TOTAL $  20.000.00 $  - Is 20.000.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

Contractor Initials:

Page i of i Dale: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • EPHT

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 | Amendment #2

Line Item

Direct /' •. Indirect -'Total V Allocation Method for

Incremental Fixed •' . " • 'Ihdlrect/Flxed Cost '
1. Total Salary/Wages $

2. Employee Benefits $

3. Consultants $

A. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $

5. Supplies; (includes supplies for Education, l.^b.
Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $

6. Travel $

7. Occupancy $

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone. Postage,
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $

9. Software $

10. Marketing/Communications $

11. Staff Education and Training $

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  20,000.00 $ 20,000.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $

Materials Production $
Information Systems $

HR $
Gen Admin $

Payroll and Accountina $

$
$

TOTAL $ 20,000.00 1

The federally approved

Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement (NiCRA)

for JSI Research and

Training Institute, Inc.
includes fringe benefits

(38% of salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities
including occupancy,

equipment, general office
supplies,

telecommunications and

other current expenses,

information systems,
accounting and payroll,

-human resources and staff

development, and general
administrative support

costs. The approved
basis for application of the

NICRA is on

salary/wages only

including holiday, sick and
vacation.

Indirect As A Percent of Direct #DIV/OI

Contractor Initials:

Page i of i Date: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • Home Visiting

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment #2

Line Item

"• Directs- .. vlndirect;

Incremental 'Fixed

. -.Total ".T
■'I* f . '

Allocation Method.for;
Inilrect/Fixed Cost !"

1. Total Salary/Waqes $  13,826.50 $ 13,826.50
2. Employee Benefits $  5.254.06 $  5,254.06
3. Consultants $
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair & Maintenance,
Purchase & Depreciation) $  414.79 $  414.79
5. Supplies: (Includes supplies for Education, Lab,
Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  967.85 $  967.85
6. Travel $
7. Occupancy $  1,382.65 $  1,382.65
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage,
Subscriptions. Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  ''1,106.12 $  1,106.12
9. Software $
10. MarKetinq/Communications $
11. Staff Education and Traininq $  276.53 $  276.53
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $
13. Other (specific details mandatorv): $
Learning Exchanges $
Scholarships $
HFA Traininq & Supports $

Information Systems $  760.46 $  760.46
HR $  414.79 $  414.79

Gen Admin $  414.79 $  414.79
Payroll and Accountinp $ 760.46 $  760.46

TOTAL $  23.228.50 $ 2.350.50 S 25,579.00

The federally approved
Negotiated Indirect Cost

Rate Agreement (NiCRA)
for JSI Research and
Training Institute. Inc.

-  includes fringe benefits
(38% of salary) and other

. general operating costs to

. support project activities
including occupancy,

equipment, general office
supplies,

telecommunications and
other current expenses,

information systems.
'  accounting and payroll,
-human resources and staff
■ development, and general
■  administrative support

costs. The approved
. basis for application of the

NICRA is on
salary/wages only

, including holiday, sick and
vacation.

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.1%

Contractor initials:

Page 1 of t Date: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services - PHHS Block Grant
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment #2

Line Item.

Direct • t . - :lndlrect: .Total ' /.Allocation Method for

.'Incremental ''vFlxed - !-;lndlrect/Flxe<l Cost
1. Total SalaryAWages $  5,945.95 $- $  5,945.95

2. Employee Benefits $  2.259.45 $- • $  2,259.45

3. Consultants $-

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair & Maintenance,
Purchase & Depreciation) $  178.38 $- $  178.38

5. Supplies; (includes supplies tor Education, Lab,
Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  416.22 $- $  416.22

6. Travel $-
7. Occupancy $  594.59 $• $  594.59

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage,
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  475.67 $- $  475.67

9. Software $•
10. MarKetino/Communications $  4,000.00 $- $  4,000.00

11. Staff Education and Traininq $  118.92 $- $  118.92

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $-

13, Other (specific details mandatory): $-

$-

$-

Information Systems $ 327.03 $  327.03

HR $  178.38 $  178.38

Gen Admin $  178.38 $  178.38

Payroll and Accountino $ 327.03 $  327.03

TOTAL $  13.989.19 $1,010.81 $ 15.000.00

The federally approved

Negotiated Indirect Cost
' Rate Agreement (NICRA)

tor JSI Research and

Training Institute. Inc.
-  includes tringe benefits
(38% of salary) and other

. general operating costs to

.  support project activities
including occupancy,

equipment, general office
supplies,

telecommunications and

other current expenses,
information systems,

-  accounting and payroll,

human resources and staff

■ development, and general

•  administrative support
costs. The approved

. basis for application of the
NICRA is on

salary/wages only
including holiday, sick and

vacation.

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 7.2%

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 ofi Date: 1/24/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services ♦ Opiold Assessment

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment #2

Line Item' '*

,i.Direct\ -ilndlrect , < ;:'Total , ;'^ .'Allocation IMethod for
!  Incremental ■" Fixed' ' - 'Indlr^t/Flx^ Cost'<

1 ■ Total Salary/Wages $  30.400.80
2. Employee Benefits $  11,552.27
3. Consultants
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair & Maintenance,
Purchase & Depfeciation) 912.01
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education, Lab,
Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $  2.128.06
6. Travel $ 300.00
7. Occupancy $  3.040.07
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage,
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  2,432.02
9. Software
10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training 608.03
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin

Payroli and Accounting
TOTAL $  51,373.26

$•

$-

$-

$-
$-
$-
$-
$-

$-
$-

$1,673.54
$ 912.82
$ 912.82
$ 1.673.54
$5.172.73

$ 30,400.80
$ 11,552.27

$  912.01

$  2,128.06
$  300.001
$  3,040.07

$  2,432.02

$  608.03

1673.54
912.82
912.82

1673.54

$ 56.546.00 i

The federally a(^roved
Negotiated Indirect Cost

Rate Agreement (NICRA)
tor JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.

includes fringe benefits
(38% of salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities

including occupancy,
equipment, general office

supplies,
telecommunications and
other current expenses,

information systems,
accounting and payroll,

human resources and staff
development, and general

administrative support
costs. The approved

basis tor application of the
NICRA is on

salary/wages only
including holiday, sick and

vacation.

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 10.1%

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials: (

f7Date: 1/24



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, wnUam Nt Gardner, Secrctaiy of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai COMMUNITY HEALTH

INSTITUTE is aNew Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12,2016.1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been reccived and Is in good standing as &r as

this office is concerned. s

Business ID: 742096

Is.
s

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 23rd day of May A.D. 2017.

William M. Gardner

Secretaiy of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctaiy of State of the State of Ne\v Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTB, INC. Is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business In New Hampshire on Fcbruaiy 17,

2016.1 lltrthcr certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and b In good
standing as far as thb ofTice is concerned.

Business ID; 739507

o

$

aa.

•s

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand end cause to be afibced

the Seal ofdie State ofNew Hampshire,

this 23rd d^ of May A.D. 2017.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Joel H. Lamstein. of the JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby
certify that: '

1. 1 am the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d^/a Community

Health Institute:

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research &

Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated October 24. 2008;

RESOLVED: Appointment of Jonathan Stewart as Director of the Community Health Institute

with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.

3. I further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of January 24. 2019.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Institute.

Inc., d^/a Community Health Institute this 24th day of January. 2019.

/ tf
Joel H^amstein, President

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merrimack

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 24th dav of January. 2019 bv Joel H.
Lamstein. ii /I . *'v

^  ̂ v.* '

f'' /"r
Notary P»^ic/Justice of the Peace oeraA-ili LiOVE,ilot|^ Rubfld
My Com/Ti/ssion Expires: My Coinif)telbn Expires Septet 5; ̂ 3

V  v"" ■ ^



/KCOf^D'

JOHNSNO-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

PMEANEY.
DATE (Mtt/DOrrVYY)

09/0^2018
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(let) must have ADDITIGNAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Mason & Mason Technology Insurance Services, Inc.
456 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02382

gJ^JJACT Judy Yeary

Ettt: (781) 447-5531 Kfc. no»:(781 ) 447-7230
Jyeary@masonln8ure.com

INSURERISl AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Federal Insurance Comoanv 20281

INSURED

JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute
501 South Street

2nd Floor

Bow. NH 03304

INSURER a: Executive Risk indemnitv 35181

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL

INSD
8UBR

VfYD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMMmomYYI

POLICY EXP
nilM/niWYYYYI UMns

A X COMMERCIAL Of NERAL LIABILITY

)E I'iiri OCCUR 35873320 09/09/2018 09/09/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

—

CLAIMS-MAI DAMAGE TO RENTED s  1,000,000

MED EXP (Anv one oeraoni
j  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY j  1,000,000

GENV AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
j  2.000,000

X

POLICY 1 1 LOC
OTHER; Combined Agg $10M

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
j  Included

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABLrtY

73546634 09/09/2018 09/09/2019

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT ,  1,000,000

JL

ANY AUTO BODILY MJURY (Per oerwn) $
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aIR^S ONLY

 XX

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

ssPom?
BODILY INJURY (Per accident) t
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accktianty s

s

A A UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE 79861066 09/09/2018 09/09/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  20,000,000

AGGREGATE
j  20,000,000

DED RETENTION $
s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^ / m
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTTVE 1 1

H vat. daacdba undaf
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

71733182 09/09/2018 09/09/2019

y PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER

e.L. EACH ACCIDENT
,  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
s  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - POl ICY 1IMIT
s  1,000,000

B

A

ERRORS & OMISSIONS

Directors & Officers

82120859

81595534

11/09/2017

11/09/2017

11/09/2018

11/09/2018

EACH OCC/GEN AGG

EACH OCC/GEN AGG

2,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES UCORO 101. Additional RamaHw Schadula. may ba attaclwd H mora apsca la raqulra^
It Is understood and agreed that the State of NK Department of Health and Human Services Is Included as an additional Insured as respects General Liability
as required by written contract per the terms and conditions of the policy.

state of NH Department of Health and Human Services
Brown Building
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) IE) 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training.

Community Health Institute
Mission Statement

The Communit)' Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.



JSI RESEARCH AND TRAINING INSTITUTE, INC.

AND

AFFILIATE

Audited CoasoUdated Financial Statements and Reports
Required by Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance

September 30,2017



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and ACRUate
September 30,2017
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Norman R. Fougere, Jr. CPA
99 Herttaoe Lane

DuxbuRY, ma 02332-4334

FOUCI;R,H
PHONE: 781-934-0460

FAX: 781-934-0606

1
c <> 11 II I a ti I

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute^ Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate (both non-profit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2017, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for. the year then
ended, and the related not^ to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free
fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conduct^ our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are fiw of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts wd
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

1



assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
^)propriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present furly, in all
material respects, the financial position of JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
as of September 30, 2017, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
I

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated finaricial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived fiom and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financi^
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures q)plied in the audit of
_t^ consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underiying ac^unting and other reco^lui^lo
prei^ the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stat^ in all

I material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated April 26, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized
consolidated comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended September
30,2016 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.



other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 23,
2018, on our consideration of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfiBliate's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research
and Traimng Institute, Inc. and AfQliate's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 23,2018



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLroATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30,2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

2017

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work
Loans receivable - related party

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment:

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold Improvements

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

$  74,642,976

19,782,268

2016

1,697,407

190,500

67.950

96381,101

679,098

30,355

709,453

(651.423)

58,030

119,888

S  68,620,315

18,498,218

1,670,752

276,013

89,065,298

636,492

30,355

666,847

(634,621)

32,226

109,058

S  96,559,019 S 99206^

LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll withholding
Accrued vacation

Advances for program woiic

Loans payable - related party
Notes payable

Contingencies

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  11,678,687

1,920,964

35,095.465

196,828

48,891,944

47,467.027

200,048

47.667.075

10,873,875

1,824,437

30,642.424

1,001,492

44,342,228

44,706,560

157,794

44.864354

$  96359,019 S 89306382

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVmES

Year Ended September 30,2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

2017 2016

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Public Support and Revenue

. Public Support:

Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts

Program income

Contributions

In-kind project contributions

Interest Income

Total Unrestricted Support and Revenue

Expenses

Program Services:

International programs
Domestic programs

Total Program Services

Supporting Services;

Management and General

Fundraising

Total Supporting Services

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Program restricted net assets

Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets

increase (decrease) In net assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

271,426.627

5,258.877

57,926,891

99,859

332,613

14,444,516

121.168

349,610,551

293,709,946

19.653.591

313,363,537

33,327,219

149,914

33.477.133

346,840,670

2,769,881

32,840

32,840

2,802,721

44,864.354

243,054,246

6,069,315

53,310,784

186,344

11,700,204

6,852,099

41.432

321,214,424

256,624,631

18,826,817

275,451,448

31,053,862

171,766

31.225.628

306,677,076

14,537,348

152.794

152,794

14,690,142

30,174.212

S  47,667,075 $ 44,864354

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLTOATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended September 30,2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL

EXPENSES

interpttiottal

ProgMiw

Dotncstk

Programs Total

Maoasement

And Geoeral Fondralstog Total 2017 2016

Salaries

Consultants

Cooperating National

Salaries

Travel

Allowance & Training

Sub-contracts

Equipment, Material and

Supplies

Other Costs

In-kind project e}q)enses

Depreciation

S  26,154.724

IS.636,684

36,099,944

12,597,149

9,929,257

123,068.419

13,897,759

41.881,494

14.444,516

7,921.065 J 34,075,789

4,4311853

853,619

6li671
4,715^999

84;54]

1,5841843

20,068,537

36,099,944

13,450,768

9,990,928

127.784.418

13,982,300

43,466,337

14.444,516

6,731,319

2,279342

511,039

643,136

431.836

58,140

443,184

22312,42!

16.802

64370 S

16,362

326

8,897

60.059

6.795389

2395.704

511,039

643,462

431,836

67,037

443,184

22372,480

16.802

S  40,871378

22364341

36.610,983

14,094330

10,422,764

127,851,455

14.425.484

65,738,817

14,444.516

16,802

S  38,731,616

22,656,189

38,733,286

16,170,730

10,163306

93326,758

6,969,920

72,857,717

6,852.135'

15.419

TOTAL EXPENSE S 293,709,946 $ 19353391 S 313363337 S 33327319 S 149,914 S 33.477,133 S 346340370 S 306.677.076

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

o\



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended September 30,2017
(With Comparative Totals for 2016)

2017 2016

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Increase (Decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash provided by operating activities;

Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in receivables for program work

(Increase) Decrease in field advances - program

(Increase) Decrease in employee advances

(Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses^

(Increase) Decrease in other assets

Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and

payroll withholdings

Increase (E>ecreas6) in accrued vacation

Increase (Decrease) in advances for program work

Net Cash Provided (Used) By

Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Loans made

Loans repaid

Acquisition of property and equipment

Net Cash Provided (Used) By

Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year ^

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

$  2,802,721 $  14,690,142

16,802 15,419

(1,284,050) (118,116)

(26,655) 2,160,324

85,513 (7,586)

(67,950) 3,700

(10,830) (25,722)

804,812 4.702,652

96,527 . 242,541

4,453.041 13,111.616

6,869,931 34,774,970

(1,001,492)

196,828 1,132,362

(42,606) (10,579)

(847,270) 1.121,783

6,022.661 35,896,753

68.620.315 32,723,562

$  74,642,976 S 68,62031S

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2017

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACnVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April II, 1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education
and research primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States
and abroad. Current fimding is principally from the United States Agency for International
Development and the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. (Affiliate)
with such powers as are typically accorded to a sole member including the power of appointment
and removal of the World Education, Inc. board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to
the bylaws and certificate of incorporation of World Education, Inc., and the right to approve any
merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of World Education, Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New
Jersey. Working in partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia,
Afiica, and the United States, it provides professional assistance in the design and
implementation of non-formal adult education programs. These programs integrate fimctional
education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth and national development
such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education, agricultural practices,
literacy, and income generation.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliate are tax exempt organizations under 501
(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc., its affiliate, (collectively referred to as the
Organization). Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the
accrual basis of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
and its afiSliate in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Use of Estimates

The picparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly^ actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Fair Value

The Organization values its qualifying assets and liabilities under a fair value hierarchy .that
prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The hierarchy consists of three
broad levels: Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities and have the highest priority, Level 2 inputs consist of observable inputs
other than quoted prices for identical assets, and Level 3 inputs have the lowest priority. The
Organization uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the
fair value of its assets and liabilities. When av^able, the Organization measures fair value using
Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity
dates of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those fii^cial
instruments.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in
debt securities (marketable investments) are measured at feir values based on quoted market
prices in the consolidated statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are
included in the statement of activities.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is reported on the basis of cost less acctimulated depreciation.
Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the b^k value of the respective
assets over their estimated useful lives (5 - 7 years) of the related assets.

Revenue Recognition
The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements,
and grants with U.S. government agencies, primarily the United States Agency for International
Development and the United States Department of Health and Human Services. Revenues are
recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying expenditures that are reimbursable under the
terms of the contracts, agreements or grants, or in accordance with the grantor's restrictions.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Revenue Recognition - continued
Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made
or the gift is received, whichever is earlier.

Cootrihutions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.
Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted siqjport and are then reclassified to
unrestricted net assets upon expiration of &e time restriction. Temporarily restricted support,
w^ose restrictions arc met in the same reporting period, is shown as unrestricted support

Donated Materiab and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in kind project contributions at their estimated
fair maricet value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated
statement of activities. Donated services are recognized if the services received create or
enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills that are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt fiom income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is not a private foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes is included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material
changes to the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the
^plicable taxing authorities, federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and
requiiBd-i^turns .m.a-tirnely-irianner..including as permitted allowed extensions. Following
administrative practice of the taxing authorities, the tax years 2014,2015, 2016 and 2017, remain
open years subject to examination and review.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) file separate
unconsolidatcd tax returns. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. files tax returns based on a
September BO**" year end and its affiliate files tax returns based on a June SO"" year end.

FuDCtional Allocation of Expenses '
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certairi costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

10



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Statement Presentation
In accordMcc with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. For the
year ended September 30,2017 there was no activity in permanently restricted net assets.

Prior Year Comparative Totals
The financial statements include prior-year summarized comparative information in total. Such
information docs not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United.States of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements for the year
ended September 30,2016, fixim which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassification

Certain amounts for 2016 have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintairis demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions.
At times, certain balances held in these accoimts may not be fully guaranteed by the United
States Government. The uninsured portions of cash and money maricet accounts are backed
solely by the ̂ ets of the financial institution. ■ Therefore, the failure of a financial institution
could result in a financial loss to the Organization. However, the Organization has not
experienced losses on these accoimts in the past and management believes the risk'of loss if any
to be minimal. '

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS
I

Fair Value

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization values its quaUfying assets and liabUitics under a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The three levels of the fair
value hierarchy are as follows:
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS - continued

Fair Value - continued

• Uvel } - Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

• Level 2 - Inputs other' than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the
asset either directly or indirectly, including inputs from markets that are not considered to
be active.

• Level 3 - Unob^rvable inputs which reflect the Organization's assessihent of the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including
assumptions about risk.

A qualifying asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The following is a summary of fair values of investments which are measured on a recurring
basis using Level 1 inputs as recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at
September 30,2017:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (invested) $ 61.271.603

$ 6U71U>03

No assets or liabilities were measured at Level 2 or Level 3.

The following schedule summarizes the investment retum and its classification in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities for the year ended September 30,2017:

Unrestricted

Interest income $ 121,168

Total investment return $ 121,168
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Receivables for program work arc stated at the amount management expects to collect fiom
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a
provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts at
September 30,2017 was SO.

Receivables for program work consist of the following at September 30,2017:

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 11,921,024
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 814,712
U.S. Department of State 1,306,716
U.S. Department of Labor 111,857
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 584,391
Other - non-govemmental 5,043,568

S 19,782,268

NOTE 6 - LOANS RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans receivable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, due on demand,
from John Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans. The
loans receivable balance at Septemba 30,2017is $0.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are as follows:

Cost

Accumnlated

Depreciation

Furniture and equipment $ 679,098 $ (621,068)
Leasehold improvements 30,355 (30,355)

709,453

Net

58,030

$  (651,423) $ 58,030

Depreciation expense was $16,802 for the year ended September 30,2017.

NOTE 8 - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following at September 30,2017:

Deposits

Artwork - donated

82,943

36,945

119388

'Donate artwork is recorded at a dikounted apprised value at the date of gift

NOTE 9 - ACCRUED VACATION

In accordance with formal policies, vacation was accrued at September 30,2017 as follows:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate)
$  1,628,028

292,936

$  1,920,964
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program woric consist of the following at September 30,2017:

Other - non-govemmental

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (related party) $ 91,723
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation 25,082,446

Other 9.921J96

$ 35,095,465

NOTE 11 - LOANS PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans payable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, payable on demand,
from John Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans. The
loans payable balance at September 30,2017 is $196,828.

NOTE 12 - NOTES PAYABLE

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has a revolving line of credit established February 3,2004 with
Citizens Bank of Massachusetts with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. llie revolving line of
credit was renewed on July 11, 2017. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is charged by
utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2018 and annually thereafter contingent upon performance. The
loan is coUateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No
funds were borrowed during the year and as a result, as of September 30, 2017, the outstanding
balance is $0 and no interest was incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30,
2017.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfiHUate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 12 - NOTES PAYABLE - continued

John Snow. Inc.

World Edi^tion, Inc. (Affiliate) has an unsecured revolving line of credit established September
1, 2007 with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The
loan was renewed on July 1, 2016. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the
current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, in any event, on or prior to
June 30, 2017. The loan is not collateiali^. No funds were borrowed during the year and as a
result, as of September 30,2017, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this
loan during the year ended September 30,2017. (See NOTE 17)

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

to accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the
^g^tion are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any
dis^lowed costs. Management believes that any adjustment, which might result fiom such an
audit would be immaterial.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan
with no balance due at S^^mber 30, 2017. Management believes that the co-borrower is
current on the loan and that its collateral exceeds the balance due. (See NOTE 17)

I^vmonal indirect cost rates are negotiated with the United States Agency for International
Development (AID) on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2017, actual indirect cost rates
have been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through December 31
2010 and World Education, Inc. through June 30, 2015. Based on favorable past experience'
m^graent believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, wouldnot be material"
to the financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 14 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted by donors as follows at September 30,2017:

Program Services $ 195,048

Time Restrictions 5,000

$  200,048

No assets were released fiom donor restriction by occurrence of events specified by the donor
during the year ended September 30, 2017.

NOTE 15 - SURPLUS REVENUE RETENTION

In accordance with the Massachusetts Division of Bureau Services, Regulation 808 OMR
1.03(7), "if, through cost savings initiatives implemented consistent with programmatic and
contractual obligations, a non-profit Contractor accrues an net surplus from the revenues
and expenses associated with services provided to Departments which are subject to 808 CMR
1.00, the Contractor may retain, for future use, a portion of that annual surplus not to exceed
20% of said revenues. Surpluses may be used by the Contractor for any of its established
charitable purposes, provided that no portion of the surplus may be used for any non
reimbursable cost set forth in 808 CMR 1.05, the free care prohibition excepted. Operational
Services Division shall be responsible for determining the amount of surplus that may be
retained by each Contractor in any given year and may determine whether any excess surplus
shall be used to reduce future prices or be recouped."

For the yev ended September 30,2017, the organization did not have an aruiual net surplus that
exceeded 20% of relevant Massachusetts revenues.
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JSI Research and Training Institute,Inc. and AfBIiate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 16 - COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

The following is a schedule of expenditures with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts:

Receivables from program work at October 1,2016 $ 549,882

. Receipts (5,224,368)
Disbursements/expenditures 5,258,877

Receivables from program work at September 30,2017 S S84391

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (an exempt organization) and John Snow, Inc. (a non-
exempt corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. Mr. Joel Lamstein is
President and Director of both organizations, and is the sole stockholder of John Snow, Inc. The
two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill the federal and state governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2017, John Snow, Inc. billed JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. $24,641,616 for consulting services (technical support). This amount is reflected
under the program services - consulting line item ($16,086,359) and program services - other
costs line item ($8,555,257) on the statement of functional expenses. In addition, JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc. performed consulting services (technical support) for John Snow, Inc
totaling $7,459,675.

The two companies also sl^ ̂ilities ̂ d pool yario^ pvCThead expends. Fgiithe year ended
September 30, 2017, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. incurred $25,994,433 of overhead
expenses (supporting services), of wdiich $9,314,712 was its share of John Snow, Inc. incurred
costs.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercial
demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of May 31, 2018, which allows for
borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security agreement with a first
position lien on all corporate assets of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and John Snow,
Inc. including assignment of promissory notes and security documents between the two
companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus
two percent (2.00%) payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2017 was 3.235%. At
September 30,2017, a balance of $0 was outstanding on the loan. Management believes the loan
payable will be extended, when due, under similar terms and conditions.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AITiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

John Snow, Inc. - continued

During the year, the Company had various loans receivable due from, and various loans payable
due to John Snow, Inc. At September 30, 2017, the loan receivable balance is $0 and ̂ e loan
payable balance is $196,828.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow,
Inc. will provide administrative and technical support as deemed necessary by World Education,
Inc.'s Board of Trustees. Transactions with John Snow, Inc. for the year ended September 30,
2017 are summarized as follows:

Administrative and technical siq)port $ 1,481,286

Other direct charges (including rent of $884,924) 1,297,647

$  2,778,933

The agreement is on a year*to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon ninety days
written notice to the other.

World Education, Inc. provided services to John Snow, Inc. during the year ended September 30,
2017 totaling $88,760 and was recorded as revenue in the consolidated statement of activities.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line of credit with John Snow, Inc. with a borrowing
limit ofup to $1,000,000. (See NOTE 12)

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc.
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (PSCM) (an exempt organization) was
incorporated on February 14,2005 by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management
Sciences for Health, Inc. Each organization has 50% control.

I

PSCM has been awarded a U.S. government contract to procure and deliver life-saving
medicines and medical supplies to treat HIV/AIDS patients worldwide. The contract for the
Supply Chain Management System project was awarded through the U.S. Agency for the
International Development as part of the U.S. government's $15 billion President's Emergency
Plan for AIDS Relief.

Joel Lamstein, President and Director of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., is
President and Director of PSCM.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. - continued

During the year ended September 30, 2017, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. billed
PSCM SI 1,771,551 for services performed with a cost of $9,926,355 arid a fee of $1,845,196.
At September 30.2017, PSCM advanced the Organization $91,723 for program work.

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a certain related company to purchase services.
Transactions with this company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows:

The ManofF Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation;
40% owned by John Snow, Inc.) , $ 1,061,497

$  1,061,497

NOTE 18 - RETIREMENT PLANS

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(K) plan
covering substantially all its employees. Employee contributions are voluntary. Employer
contributions are based on a percentage (10% - 15% depending on length of service) of salary.
The Plan was effective April 11, 1979. Pension expense was $3,612,409 for the year ended
September 30,2017.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) provides retirement benefits to substantially all employees
under apian. -World Education, Inc.-s contributions of 7 percent of employee salaries are used to
purchase individual annuities. Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the
employees. Participants of the plan are fully and immediately vested when contributions are
made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were $334,310 for the year ended
September 30,2017.

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases
The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating
leases expuing from 2017 through 2019. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to
5 years.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS - continued

During the year ended September 30, 2017, rentals under long-term lease obligations were
$518,335. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30,2017 are:

Year Ended

September 30,

2018 $ 386,434
2019 127,139

$  313,573

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent
expense for the year ended September 30,2017 was $884,924.

NOTE 20 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various
departments and agencies of the Federal government

I

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support fit>m the following sources
for the year ended September 30,2017:

Income % of

Received Total Income

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 209,646,197 59.97%

NOTE 21 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization receives donated matenals and services consisting of commodities, facilities
and equipment, and services for use in its programs fium overseas collaborative private
voluntary organizations and from foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated
materials and services totaled $14,444,516 for the year ended September 30, 2017, and are
reflected as In Kind Project Contributions on the Consolidated Statement of Activities and In
Kind Project Expenses on the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2017

NOTE 21 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS - continued

These contributions satisfy part of the matching requirements needed to obtain full flmding on
certain U.S. Agency for International Development grants. During the year ended September 30,
2017, the following donated materials and services received by the Organization have been used
to fulfill matching requirements on active grants:

36532 Turkmenistan YC S  39,146
36697 SPRING 3,702,019
36895 Mozambique M-SIP 21,755
36991 AIDS FREE 8,507.628
37024 TfinTiinin PHSS 982,199
37134 Timor Leste RBHS 208.708
37162 Ghana HIV/AIDS 54,044
37186 Madagascar CCH 229,806
37244 Russia P2P 21,234
63101 Senegal/Journalism 90,738
63114 Uganda 75,264
63139 Benin FFE 13,330
64024 Tanzania 21,702
64057 Zimbabwe 61,029
64062 Uganda 192,537
64071 OUTCOMES 136,459
64074 Mozambique 76,471

S  14,434,069

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through April 23,2018, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, there were no
subsequent events that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-tbrougb Graotor

Program Title

Agency or

Pass-througb

Number

US. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

6I7-A-00-09-00007-00

120-A-0(K>9-00029-00

687-A-OO-l 1-00013^)0

AID-OAA-A-11-00031

AICMDAA-A-11-00073

AID-121-A.)I-00003

AID-OAA-A-12-00047

AID-391-A-13-00002

AID-6S6-A-I3-00006

A1D-685-A-I4-0000)

AIOOAA-A-14-00046

AID-621-A-14-00004

AID-6I l-A-16-00004

AID-472-A-I6-00001

AID-641-A-16-00007

AID-687-A-16-00001

Direct Grants:

36521 - Uganda HIV/AIDS/TB

36532 - Turkmenistan YC

36662 - Madagascar CBIHP

36697 - SPRING

36702 - Nepal CHX Cord Care

36747 - Ukraine HWUP

36S00 - Advancing Partners

36845 - Pakistan HSSP

36895 - Mozambique M-SIP

36932 - Senegal LLP

36991 - AiDSFREE

37024 • Tanzania CHSS

37129 • Zambia Discover Health

37134 - Timor Leste RBHS

37162-Ghana HIV/AIDS

37186 - Madagascar CCH

Total Direct Grants - CFDA #98.001

Pass-througb Grants:

Passed dirough Partnership for Supply Chain

Management, Inc. (PSCM):

36344/36519/36524/37034/37053/37150 - Supply
Chain Management System

Pass^ Oirou^ Johns Hopkins University:
37099 - Ethiopia SBCC

Passed through Pathfinder International:

37265 - Ethiopia TRANSFORM AID663A1700002

Passed through Program for Appropriate Technology
in Health:

37301 - Open LMIS - Phase 1

Passed through Management Science for Health, Inc.

37305 • MSH Guinea eLMIS TA

Total Pass-througb Grants - CFDA #98.001

Total - CFDA #98.001 - USAID Foreign

AtsistaDce for Programs Overseas

TOTAL - U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

GPO-l-OO-05-0003

AiD-663-A-l 5-000

AID.2I34-0I5557

SIAPS-Gulnca-n-

2-00

011

16-CR

OI

Federal

CFDA

Number

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001,

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

Passed

Through to

Subrcclpients

79^02,636

Federal

Eipenditures

35,943 S

(10,469)

7,483,566

38,170,434

1,694,570

12.2S2

27,033,705

1,545,547

1,197,619

1,567,945

471,524

478,356

276,323

(10,469)

27,002,657

1,015,986

7,656

60,045,239

6.061,436

1,213,872

127,675

46,523,456

9,323,796

19.810.322

1,498,645

4,907,365

6.992.770

18SJ7S.0g5

9,926,355

(1.076)

887.909

44,269

10.892.643

79^02.636 196.167.728

j

S 79^02^ S 196.167.728
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JSI Research and Training Institute, lnc«

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Graotor/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title

Agency or

Pas»-through

Number

MJS. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through NACCHO:

36689 - NH MRC Conferences 2011*041218

Total CFDA #93.008 - Medical Reserve Corps

Small Grant Program

Direct Grant:

37087 • Adolescent HIV/AIDS Prevention MA1AH000001

Total CFDA #93.057 - National Resource Center

for HIV Preventioo Among Adolescents

Direct Grant:

37128 • Competitive Abstinence Education Agreement @09/30/13

Total CFDA #93.060 - Competitive Abstinence

Education (CAE)

Direct Grant:

36901 - CDC - Scrat^c Assessments for Strategic

Action in India

Total CFDA #93.067 - Global AIDS

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Vermom:

37096 - Asthma Control Program

37206 - VT Climate Change Eval.

37212 - VT HPDP Evaluation

Total CFDA #93.070 - Environmental Public

Health and Emergency Response

Pass-through Grants:

Passed dirou^ the State of New Hampshire:

37132-NHEbola Readiness

37222 - South Central CHIP

Total CFDA #93.074 - Hospital Preparedness

Program

lU2GCH00n32.OI

29370

31578

Contract #31786

Agreement© 11/18/15

Agreement @ 04/01 /16

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal

Number Subreclpienti Eipendltnrcs

93.008 S 75

93.057 55.510

55,510

93.060

93.067

93.070

93.070

93.070

93.074

93.074

75

342.523

342,523

9.391

9,391

24.360

24360

4.048

10,591

29.867

44306

877

1,064

1341

Sm notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 24



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal GraDtor/Pass-tbroogh Grantor
Prosram Title

Pass-through
Number

CFDA

Number

Through to
SubreclDients

Federal

ExDCttdltures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Direct Grant:

37103 -HITEQ U3(K:;S29366 93.129 1,308,648 2,116,274
Pas»-tbroagb Grants:

Passed through Community Health Assoc. of

Mountain/Plain States:

37225 - CHAMPS Planning 2016
Passed through Conununi^ Health Center

APW/CHAMPS/9.1.16 93.129 4,847

37241 - CHCACT UDS Training
Passed through National Assoc. of Community Health

APW/II.I0.16/CHACT 93.129
- 3,578

Centers, Inc.:

37256 - NACHC Pop Heahh Web APW/NACH/I0.I2.I6 93.129 .

676
37266 - NACHC Payment Reform Agreement, 01 -30-2017 93.129

V

13,801
37319 - NACHC PR Webinar U30CSI6089 93.129 . 1.283

Total CFDA #93.129 - Technical and

Non-Flnandal Assistance to Health Centers 130&648 2,140.459

Pas»-tbrongb Grant:

Passed through Dartmouth Toxic Metals:

37297 - Dartmouth Arsenic Site APW/DTMSRP/4.17.17 93.143 . 1.421
Total CFDA #93.143 - NIEHS Superfbnd

Hazardous Substances-Basic Research and Education
1.421

Direct Grant:

36904 - Ryan White ACE

Pass-tfarongb Grant:
UF2HA26520 93.145 3,333 4,667

Passed through Health Research, Inc.:

37221 - NatioitaJ QualtQ^ Center Evaluation Project Agreement @7-01-16 93.145 . 86.326
Total CFDA #93.145 - AIDS Education and

Training Centers
3J33 90.993

Pass-througb Grant:

Passed through the State of Vennont.:

37212 - VT HPDP EvaJuation Contract #31786 93.184 14.171
Total CFDA #93.184 - Disabilities Prevention

. 14.171

Pass-tbrou^ Grants:

37163 - FamPtan Data Systems

37281 • FamPlan Data Systems
93.217

93.217

- 116,399

68.774
Total CFDA #93.217 - Family Planning Services

- 185,173

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal GraDtor/Pass-througb Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-throogb
Namber

Federal

CFDA

Passed

Through to Federal

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Direct Grant:

37103-HITEQ

Total CFDA #93.224 - Health Center Program

(Community Health Centers, Migrant Himltb

Centers, Health Care for the Homeless,

and Public Housing Primary Care)

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Buildings Bright Futures State

Advisory Council, Inc.:

36850 - Vemront L.A.U.N.C.H. Project

Passed through Community Health Institute and

Harbor Homes, Inc.:

37042 - Harbor Homes Inc.

Passed through State of Rhode Island:

37107-PFS11

Passed through State of New Hampshire:

37133 - HCDC Evaluation

37151 - NH DMH Client Survey

Passed through State of Vermont:

37212-VTLOL Survey

Passed through Prism Health North Texas;

37286 - HS Atlanta Consulting

Passed through Savarmah State University:

37286 • HS Atlanta Consulting

Passed through Substance Abuse Certer.

37300 - RI Healthy Trans

Total CFDA #93.243 - Substance Abuse and

Mental Health Services Projects of Regional

and National Significance

Pass-through Grant:

Passed throu^ Boston University:

37243 - Dartmouth Training

Total CFDA #93.249 - Public Health Training

Centers Program

U30CS29366-03 93.224

13/7

3426881

Agreement© 10/01/13

Agreement ©01/13/16

Contrad #31786

Emails 4/24-7/7/2017

Email 7/28/17

93:243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93243

93.243

93243

93243

93.249

16,477 96.580

16,477 96380

1,540 52268

' 4,612

10,000 60,705

- 44,358

14,413 66,857

3.083 31,531

- 7,313

- 4267

13249

29,036 285260

5.415

5A15

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 26



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grantor/Pass-tfarough Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal

CFDA

Number Subreclplents

Passed

Through to Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTINUED:

Direct Grants:

36777 - National Training Center - Quality Assurance,

Quali^ Improvement, Evaluation

36787 - Reproductive Health Prevention Training

and Technical Assistance

36792 - National Training Center for Management

and Systems improvement

37223 - Family Planning National Training Center

' for Service Delivery Improvement

Total - CFDA #93.260 - Family Planning -

Personnel Training

Direct Grant:

37321 -HRSA RRHO

Total CFDA #93.266 - Health Systems

Strengthening and HIV/AIDS Prevention,

Care and Treatment under the President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through United Way/Greater Nashua:

36937 - Nashua DFC Eval FYI4

Passed dirou^ Narragansett Prevention Partnership:

37148-NPP.Evaiuation - -

Passed through Monadnock Alcohol and Drtig Abuse

Coalition:

37184-Monadnock TAP

Passed through City of Franklin, NH:

37290 - FMDTF DFC Eval

Passed through Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital:
37324 - Upper Valley DFC Eval

Total CFDA #93.276 - Drug-free Communities

Support Program Graints

FPTPA006025

FPTPA0060I5

FPTPA006023

FPTPA006028

UH5HA30789

Agreement @ 9-30-16

Agreement^ l-Oi-16

Agreement @ 2-01 • 16

APW/COF/I.5.17

Agreement @ 3-29-17

93.260

93.260

93.260

93.260 U47.9i4

1047.914

93.266

93.276

93.276

93.276

93076

93.276

4

143

(3,481)

3.447.396

3.444,062

131.343

131043

4,075

11082

217

9,008

2.005

26087

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass-tbroogh Grantor
Proarao Title

Pass-through
Number

CFDA

Number

Through to
Subrecipients

Federal

Ezpenditnra

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-throagb Grants:

Passed through Coiiunonweaith of Massachusetts

Department of Health:

HIV/AIDS Researehf Training and Support INTF-4inM04300S24036 93283 - 169,912

Passed through Catholic Medical Center Community

Services:

37315 • CMC Focus Group APW/CMa6.14.17 93.283 . 986

Passed through State of Vermont:

37125 - VOHC Planning 30445 93283 - 443

37212 - VT HPDP Evaluation Contract D01786 93283 - 9.457

Total - CFDA #93.283 - Ccntera for Disease

Control and Prevention - Investigations

and Tcebnical Assistance ..
- 180.798

Direct Grant:

36891 - PPHF 2013 - OSTLTS Partnerships IU380T000188 93292 49.000 98.131

Total - CFDA #93.292 - National Pnbllc Health

Improvement Initiative 49.000 98.131

Pass-througb Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Dept of Health and

Human Services:

37214 - NH Tobacco Helpline FV17 Agreement @ 07-01 • 16 93.305 - 122,169
Passed throu^ Vermont Department of Health:

37212 • Vermont Health Evaluation Contract #31786 93.305 3.083 165256

Total - CFDA #93305 - Nat State Based -

Tobacco Control Program 3.0S3 287.425

Pass-throogh Grants:

Passed through the Association of State and Territorial

Health Officials:

37149 - ASTHO Adult Immunization Agreement© I-0I-I6 93.524 . .  488

37273 - ASTHO Toolkit 63-12913 93.524 - 4,879

Total. CFDA #93324 - BuUdlng Capacity of ,

tbe Public Health System to Improve

Population Health through Nat'L NPOi - 5J67

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 28



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Graotor/Pass-tbrougfa Graotor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-tb rough
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Tb rough to
Number Subreclpients

UA DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Federal

Espeoditures

PSC-00SS4

NU58DP00S338

10428SS

I043I88

PO# 1031592

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the University of Colorado:
37270 - TCP1

Total - CFDA #93.638 - ACA Transforming
Clinical Practice Initiative: Practice

Transformation Networks (PTNs)

Direct Grant:

37015 • Tobacco Use Prevention

Total - CFDA #93.735 - State Public Health
Approaches for Ensuring Quitline Capacity

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of New Hampshire:
37048 - National Diabetes Prevention Program
37068 - Technical Assistance Network for Rural

Health Clinics

37200 - Public Health Program Services Support
Total - CFDA #93,757 - Stale Public Health

Actions to Prevent Diabetes, Heart Disease,
Obesity and Assoc. Risk Factors

Pasa-throngb Grants:

Passed through Missouri Department of Health and

Senior Services:

37130--M0 HEAL- - - ,

Passed through Rhode Island Department of Health:

37140 - R1 Epidemiological Support
Total • CFDA #93.758 - Preventive Health and

Health Services Block Grant Funded Soley
with Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Lakes Region Partnership:
37245 - NH DSRIP Region 5 APW/LRP/IO.20.16

Total - CFDA #93.779 - Centers for Medicare
and Medicald Services (CMS) Research,

Demonstnitions aud Evaluations

C3I5I^|

7549784

93.638

93.735

93.757

93.757

93.757

28,320

128,006

156,326

93.758

93.758

93.779

38,452

38,452

63,449

63,449

142,265

74,676

667,349

884^90

26,257

132.454

158,711

42.614

42,614

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Grentor/Pass-throogb Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

PaS9-tb rough
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subreclpicnts

Federal

Eipcndltnres

INTP9264M04S00824007

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTINUED:

Pass-through Graut:

Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Department of Public Health:

HIV Care

Total - CFDA M3.81S • Domestic Ebola

Supplement to the ELC

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Commonwealti) of Massachusetts
/

Department of Public Heahh:

37152-Ebola CONOPS

Total - CFDA M3.8t7 - Hospital Preparedness

Program (HPP) Ebola Preparedness and

Response Activttles

Pass-through Grant:

Passed throu^ State ofNew Hampshire:

37068 • Technical Assistance Network for Rural

Health Clinics

PRF6I

PO# I043I88

93.815

93.817

93.913

Total - CFDA #93.913 - Grants to States for

Operation of OfTIces of Rural Health

Direct Grants:

37191 - HIV Integrated Planning

37194 - RWHAP ACE Health Training

37327 - CHATT Planning TA

Pass-through Grant:

Passed throu^ Boston Public Health Commission:

37170 - Quality Assurance

Total - CFDA #93.914 - HIV Emergency Relief

Project Grants

Pass-throogb Grant:

Passed through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Department of Public Health:

HIV Care

Total - CFDA #93.917 - HIV Care Formula

Grants

U69HA30144

U69HA30143

U69HA30793

Agreement 3-01 • 16

93.914

93.914

93.914

93.914

28.320

30,000

S8.320

INTF-4971 •M04900824092 93.917

274.385

274J85

75.166

7S.166

34.468

34.468

499.114

396.859

65.604

102.435

1.064.011

285.562

2SS.S62

See notes to Schedule of E^qrenditures of Federal Awards. 30



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Graotor/Pass-throDgh Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-tbroogh
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Tbrougb to
Number Subreclptents

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Pass-tbrougb Grant:

Passed through the State of Vermont:

37212 - VT LOL Survey Contreaff3l786

Total - CFDA #93.919 - Cooperative

Agreements for State-Based Comprebensive

Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection

Programs

Direct Grant:

36967 - Healthy Start Performance Project UPSMC2684S

Total - CFDA #93.926 - Hcahby Start Initiative

Direct Grant:

36945 - CDC CBA FV15 - FY19 U65PS004406

Total - CFDA #93.939 - HIV Prevention

Activities - NGO Based

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the State of Massachusetts;

37153 • CoRECT Study PRF61

Total - CFDA #93.943 - Epidemlologic

Research Studies of Acquired

Immnnodeflciiency System (AIDS) and
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

-Infection in Selected Groups

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through South County Hospital Healthcare System:

93.919

93.926

93.939

93.943

37091 - South County Health Equity Zone
Passed throu^ Vermont Department of Health

37212 - Vermont Health Evaluation

Total - CFDA #93.945 - Assistance Programs

for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Rhode Island:

36801 - Prevention Resource Center
Passed throu^ New Hamp. Prevention Certification
Board of New Hanqjshire:

37168-NHPCB Workforce

Total - CFDA #93.959 - Block Grants for

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Agreem

Contn

331684

ent @ 5-1-IS

uXil3l786

93.945

93.945

4 93.959

93.959

13.830

13^

2.138.551

2,138351

878,721

878,721

64.927

64.927

17,099

26.412

43311

184,156

24.243

208399
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 50,2017

Agency or > Federal Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-tbroagh Grantor Pass-tbrougb CFDA Tbrougb to Federal

Program Title Namber Number Sobreclpients EspendHnres

VS. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

PasMhrongh Grant:

Passed through Arizona Family Health Partnership:

37328 • AFHP CT Screening 17-JSII 93.977 . 526
Total - CFDA #93.977 - Sexually Transmitted

Diseases (STD) Prevention and Control Grants 1 826

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Tri-County Health Department:

37106-Tri-County Health Programming Agreement® 9-25-13 93.994 - 40
Passed through Global Evaluation & Applied Research

Solutions, Inc.:

37236 - MCH/SMS Retreat TA APW/GEARS/IO.7.16 93.994 - 2,546
Total - CFDA #93.994 - Maternal A Child

Health Services Block Grant to the States . 2.586

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SERVICES $ S 13.688.441

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Direct Grants:

United States Coast Guard -

37076 - Nafl. Life Jacket Wear Rate 3313FAN1502.05 97.012 S - j (28,695)
37196-Nan.EstimateofLifeJacketWearRate 3316FANI60206 97.012 8,474 104 533
37302-Nafl. Estimate of Life Jacket Wear Rate 33t7FAN170210 97.012 8,237 i5i'945

Total CFDA #97.012 - Boating Safety Financial

Assistance 16,711 237.784

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OP HOMELAND

SECURITY 16.711 S 237.784

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 32



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2^17

Federal GraDtor/Pass-througb Grantor

Program Title

VS. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pas»-tbrough Grants:

Passed throu^ State of New Hampshire:

3720S • NH Juvenitle Court Video

372S0 - Juvenille Diversion Evaluation

Total - CFDA 1^16.540 - Juvealle Justice and

DeUnquency Prevention - Allocation to States

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Agency or

Pass>tb rough

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to

Number Subrecipients

Federal

Expenditures

Agreement @ 9-^) I -15 16.540

16.540

13,376

30,454

43.830

43.830

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-tbrongb Grant:

Passed throu^ Food Insecun'Q' Nutrition Incentive (FINI):

37257 - FIN! Evaluation PRF6I 10.331 £

Total CFDA #10331 - Food insecurity

Nutrition Incentive Grants Program $

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Massachusetts Dept of Elementary

and Secondary Education:

37167-ESE Allergies Manual Agreement @3-25-16 10.560 $_
-TotalCFDA#10.560-StateAdministrative ' ~ „ .

Expenses for Child Nutritioo

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Vermont:

37155 - VT SNAP Education Evaluation 30754 10.561

Total CFDA #10361 - State Adminbtrative

Matching Grants for the Supplemental

Nutrition Assbtance Program

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

36.504

36304

99

99

31.923

31.923

68326

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 33



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2017

Federal Graator/Pass-through Grantor

,  Program THIe

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE;

Pass-tbrougb Grant:

Passed through Dreams Innovation Challenge:

37188-DREAMS

Total CFDA til 9.029 - The U.S. PrasMent's

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief Programs

Direct Grant:

37244 - Russia P2P

Agency or

Pass-throngb

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal ^

Nombcr Subreclplents Espenditores

S-LMAQM.16-CA-U03 19.029 $ 25.325.653 $ 30.290.777

S-RS500-I6-CA-179

Total CFDA HI 9.900 - AEECA/ESF PD Programs

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

2S32S.6S3

19.900

30^90.777

96.530

96430

$ 2S32SAS3 $ 30387407

U.S. DEPARTMENT OP COMMERCE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Regents of the University of Michigan:

37303 - Cape Cod Coastal

Total CFDA HI 1.419 - Coastal Zone

Management Administration Awards

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

11.419 S 2.259

2,239

2459

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $ 104343.000 $ 240493473

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 34



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30,2017

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awaids (the Schedule) ineludes the
federal grant activity of JSI Researeh and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is

a'^K'ance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal
Awards (Umform Gmdance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research and Training Institute
Inc. '

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
punting Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained
m the Umform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
are lunited as to reimbursement.

(2) l^og of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers and pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Timning Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de rhinimis indirect cost
rate allowed under the Umform Guidance.
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INDEPEPTDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOyERNMENTAUDITINGSTAJWARDS

To the Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audit^ in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
fin^ial statements of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate ("Organization''),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30. 2017, and
the related consolidated statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
April 23,2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planmng and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliate's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the

(purpose of exprc^ing an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
and Affiliates's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
pTcvmt, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combirmtion of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness]
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragr^h
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that mi^t be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether JSl Research and Training Institute,
Inc. and Affiliate's consolid£ited financial statements are fiee from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 23,2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance SvpplemerU that could have a direct
and material effect on each of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s major federal programs
for the year ended September 30,2017. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors* results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards ̂ licable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards ̂ licable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test b^is, evidence about JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance
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with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
m^'or federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, JSI Research and Training Instimte, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30,2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered JSI Research and Trainmg Institute, Inc.^s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research and Training
institute, Inc.^s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
ovCT coinpliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely b^is. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiracy, or cpmbinatioii of deficienc^^^^^ in internal, control over
compliance, such that there is a reaso^le possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely ̂ is. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in inten^ control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) maintains a different fiscal year (June 30) and has its own stand
alone audit performed in accordance with the Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform A^inistrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). However, the consolidated financial statements contain the
combined activity of JSI Research and Training, Institute and World Education, Inc.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and ̂ e results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
April 23,2018
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30,2017

SECTION I - Summary of Auditors' Results:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on the financial' statements:

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weaknesses identified?

Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal A wards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that arc
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings wWch are required to be reported under
2 CFR section 200.516(a):

Identification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee under 2 CFR
Section 200.520

Unmodified opinion

No

None reported

No

No

No

Unmodified opinion

No

USAID Foreign Assistance for
for Programs Overseas
CFDA #98.001

The U.S. President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS
Relief Programs
CFDA #19.029

$3,000,000

Yes
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no reportable findings or questioned costs for the year ended September 30,2016.
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Jonathan A. Stewart
Community Health Institiite/JSI. 50J South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3300 jstewart@/si.com

Education

Duke University School of medicine, Durham, North Carolina
Department ofHealth Administration, Master ofHealth Administration, 1986
Department ofBiochemistry, Master of Arts, Biochemistry, 1984

University of Delaware, Newark, Delaware

School of Arts & Sciences, Bachelor of Arts, Biology, 1981

Experience

JSI Research and Training Institute/Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Regional Director, September 2000 to present
Provide technical assistance, training and evaluation to health and human service organizations to support the development of
effective public health and health care systems.

Selected Technical Assistance & Training Projects

NH Community and Public Health Development Program: Project Director providing technical assistance and training
support to communities involved in development of improved local public health infrastructure; worked with multiple
partners to develop the statewide New Hampshire Public Health Network.

Community Health Services Network and Partnership for Public Health: Community assessment, workgroup facilitation and
plan development for regional integrated behavioral health system as part of a NH Delivery System Reform Incentive
Payment initiative (1115 Medicaid Waiver).

Boston Metropolitan Area Hazard Vulnerability Assessment: Technical Assistance including planning, facilitation and
analytic support to Massachusetts and New Hampshire state health departments and regional partners for assessment of
hazards, risl^ and preparedness for health care, behavioral health and public health infrastructure.

Metrowest Community Health Care Foundation (Massachusetts): Capacity and readiness assessment of seven municipalities
in Metro-Boston for developing collaborative models for local public health service delivery.

NH Division ofPublic Health Services: Project team member providing assistance on development of a Comprehensive HIV
Needs Assessment; role is focused on client and community stakeholder engagement and qualitative needs assessment.

Robert Wood Johnson Foundation: New Hampshire Turning Point Initiative: Project Director for multi-year initiative to
develop sustainable strategies for improved local public health capacity.

HRSA, Bureau ofPrimary Health Care, Uniform Data System: Trainer and editor for annual Uniform Data System reporting
for the federal Community and Migrant Health Center program.

Selected Program Evaluation Prolects

Central New Hampshire Health Partnership: Evaluator for two federal Rural Health Outreach Grant Initiatives: the first for
improving care coordination of socially and medically vulnerable populations; the second for improving care transitions from
hospital to home and community.

Communitiesfor Alcohol and Drugfree Youth (Plymouth, NH): Program Evaluator for community-based coalition involved
in multiple initiatives to promote positive and healthy school and community environments for youth.

NH Division of Alcohol & Drug Prevention & Recovery: Project Director for evaluation of state-wide ATOD prevention
initiative involving multiple community-based coalitions implementing a range of programs including family strengthening,
school-based education, mentoring and community action for environmental change.

Family Planning Private Sector Project (Nairobi, Kenya): Operations research on cost effectiveness and sustainability of
FP/MCH service delivery sites throughout Kenya to assist USAID in resource allocation decisions and to improve cost .
recovery capability of clinics.

New York State Department ofHealth (Albany, New York): Qualitative Evaluation of New York State Healthy Heart
Program; an initiative intended to influence CVD risk factors through community intervention and social marketing.

J. Stewart 1
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Selected Research Projects

National Network ofPublic Health Institutes and Robert Wood Johnson Foundation: Qualitative Assessment of Local and
State Health Officials awareness of, interest in, and capacity to employ computer modeling for emergency preparedness.

Endowmentfor Health: Study of the effect of New Hampshire's Community Benefits Law for Health Care Charitable Trusts.
Cooperative effort with NHDHHS Office of Health Planning and the NH Office of the Attorney General.

Bureau ofHealth Professions (Rockville, MD): Study of the effect of AIDS Education and Training Centers on physician
attitudes and practices; Comparative analysis of parallel CDC-funded study of the general prim'ary care physician population.

Bureau ofPrimary Health Care Delivery and Assistance (Rockville, MD): Study to assess preparedness of C/MHC's to
respond to HlV-related service needs

Bureau ofPrimary Health Care, Rockville, Maryland. Survey project designed to gather information on provider practices in
Community and Migrant Health Services relative to recommendations of the 1988 US Preventive Services Task Force.

North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, New Hampshire ^
Executive Director, 12/97 to 8/00 Founding Director of rural health network formed by four hospitals, two community health
centers, two home health agencies, a mental health and developmental services organization, and a community action program.

Ammonoosuc Community Health Services, Littleton, New Hampshire
Operations Director, 11/94 to 12/97 of federally-funded, multi-site rural Community Health Center Network.

John Snow, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts

Consultant, 10/86 to 7/94 providing assistance in health services evaluation,vfmancial analysis and program management.

Selected Pubucations | Reports

Rosenfeld, LA, Fox CE, Kerr D, Marziale E, Cullum A, Lota K, Stewart J, and Thompson MZ. "Use OfComputer Modeling
For Emergency Preparedness Functions By Local And Slate Health Officials: A Needs Assessment J Public Health Management
Practice, 15(2), 96-104, 2009.

Stewart J, Kassler W, McLeod M. "Public Health Partnerships: A New Hampshire Dance ". Transformations in Public Health,
Volume 3, Issue 3, Winter 2002. ,

Stewart, JA, Wroblewski S, Colapietro J, Davis H. "Survey of US Physicians Trained by Regional AIDS Education and Training
Centers". Abstract No. P0-D21-4047; IXth International Conference on AIDS. Berlin, Germany, June-I, 1993.

Kibua T, Stewart JA, NJiru S, Gitari A. "Sustainability and Cost Effectiveness ofFamily Planning Private Sector Subprojects".
United States Agency for International Development; Nairobi, Kenya, March 1990.

Selected Workshops I Presentations

Dartmouth College, The Dartmouth Institute, MPH Program, (formerly CECS) guest lecturer - project management, evaluatidn,
coalition development. Public Health 101; community health needs assessment; academic review of capstone theses,- 2004-2016.

Public Health Performance Improvement - The New Hampshire Experience (with Joan Ascheim, NHDHHS); 6th Annual
National Public Health Performance Standards Training Workshop; Nashville, TN; April 1-6, 2008.

Building the Public Health Infrastructure: State Lessons Learned and Keys to Success-, Nebraska Health and Human Services,
Expanding Our Vision - Transforming Vital Public Health Systems, October 2006.

Building Infrastructure in Public Health - RWJF National Turning Point Showcase Conference, Denver, CO; May 2004

Community Benefits Exemplary Practices - New Hampshire statewide conference; November 2002

Selected Boards | Affiliations

National Network of Public Health Institutes, Board of Directors, 2008 to present. Chair, 2014 - 2016
New Hampshire Public Health Services Improvement Council 2008 to present
NH Prescription Monitoring Program, Advisory Council 2012 to present
New Hampshire Healthy People 2010 Leadership Council; Co-chair, 2096-2662
New Hampshire Public Health Association; Treasurer, 1999-2003
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Katherine Robert, MPA
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. krobert@/si.com
501 South Street 2'^Jloor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 • (603) 573-3331

Education

University of New Hampshire, Durham, New Hampshire
Master of Public Administration, 2009
Bachelor of Arts in Political Science, 2006

Experience

JSl Research & Training Institute, inc., Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, December 2007 to present

JSI provides consultation to health care organizations in the areas of health services delivery, public health, practice management,
information for decision-making, and program evaluation. Clients include government agencies, public and private health care
providers (hospitals, group practices, community health centers, family planning organizations, health maintenance organizations,
community-based coalitions and social service agencies). JSI is a health care consulting firm working with clients in the public
and private sectors. Since 1978, JSI has provided consulting, research and training services for agencies and organizations seeking
to improve the health of individuals, communities and nations.

Hjghughts of Relevant Projects

Healthy Start EPIC Center December 2014 to present Provide technical assistance and training to Healthy Start
grantees to ensure program effectiveness in achieving the goals to reduce infant mortality and health disparities, and
improve perinatal health outcomes. This project focuses on providing comprehensive and innovative capacity building
assistance to community-based grantees, measuring project success by the degree to which grantees achieve core
competencies essential for effective implementation of the Healthy Start model and institutionalize a culture ofQI and
evaluation based on a foundation of documented program effectiveness. Primary responsibilities include coordination of
technical assistance. ,

NH Home Visiting Program Supports and Services July 2015 to present Oversee and coordinate seven scopes of
work building capacity for the NH Home Visiting Program and its sub-recipient agencies implementing the Healthy
Families America model, funded by the federal Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program
(MIECHV). Act as statewide training coordinator for the Healthy Families America home visitors. Conduct annual
needs assessment, identify subject-matter expert trainers, and engage in continuous dialogue with agencies to most
effectively provide training and technical assistance resources. Develop and implement a statewide needs assessment,
and provide consultation to the NH Home Visiting Task Force. Oversight of additional scopes of work include
implementation of continuous quality improvement plan for local implementing agencies, marketing and multi-media
campaign development, and post-partum visit utilization pilot research project.

Trauma Informed Care for Early Cbildbood Services (TIECS) Training Coordination July 2014 to June 2017
Engaged subject matter experts and early childhood service professionals from around the state to complete a Train the
Trainer exercise and subsequent 50+ community trainings to train over 600+ professionals serving young children and
their families. Worked with technical staff to translate the in-person training curriculum to an e-leaming format, and with
subject matter experts to develop and facilitate a learning collaborative to train interested professionals in becoming early
childhood trauma consultants.

Nutrition and Pbysicai Activity Self-Assessment for Child Care (NAP SACC) Services May 2012 to June 2013
Recruited and hired qualified consultants to implement NAP SACC in targeted NH communities. Provided technical
assistance to consultants during the project period through program recruitment support, logistical support, and
implementation support. Conducted an evaluation of past NAP SACC interventions from the perspective of trained sites
and trainers.

Tobacco and Obesity Policy Project June 2010 to January 2012 Provided project management support, and worked
with NH DHHS Obesity Prevention Program and Tobacco Prevention and Control Program staff and partners to assist in
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the development of strategies and creation of trainings and materials for licensed childcare settings, schools, and
workplaces to develop and adopt evidence-based guidelines around nutrition, physical activity, screen time, and tobacco
exposure. Conduct qualitative research to inform process.

Other Projects

Cheshire County Adult Drug Court Program September 2013 to August 2016 Managed the development of an
evaluation protocol, data management systems, and periodic evaluation reports for the SAMHSA/CSAT-ftinded
Cheshire County Drug Court (CCDC). Provided on-going technical assistance to ensure adherence to drug court model.

Public Health Program Services and Supports June 2010 to present Serve as fiscal manager for the master contract by
which various programs within the NH Department of Health and Human Services engages JSI for work. Coordinate
monthly review of invoices across 15+ tasl^, and a $2 million budget. Manage all contract set up and documentation.

NH Immunization Marketing June 2010 to December 2015 Provided project coordination support, and worked
with the NH DHHS Immunization Program staff and community stakeholders to research, and assist in the
development and implementation of a statewide marketing and awareness campaign aimed at increasing immunization
rates for priority populations, including infants, teens, and elderly.

NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program Data Utilization and Outreach Project April 2012 to
November 2015 Worked with NH DHHS Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT) staff and partners to
increase the utilization of the EPHT's data portal and other communication tools by developing a communication plan
consisting of contemporary marketing and outreach strategies. Assist EPHT in developing a user analytics data
collection process for web-based tools.

Poison Control Innovation/Transformation Project September 2013 to December 2014 Developed market
research protocol to inform the development of a three-year innovation/transformation plan for the American
Association for Poison Control Centers. Designed a survey to assess poison control centers' (PCC) use and inclination
to use new communications modalities to reach consumers of PCC services, conducted an environmental scan of
organizations with characteristics similar to PCCs, and conducted focus groups and key informant interviews. Produced
market research report focusing on identification of opportunities for PCCs to expand their role and visibility through
the use of new partnerships and communications modalities while maintaining quality in the assessment triage and
management of poison exposures.

SHARE Needs Assessment September 2013 to May 2014 Developed methodology for local non-profit needs
assessment, covering five towns in Southern NH. Developed protocols for focus groups and key informant interviews,
designed and analyzed community service provider survey. Developed and presented final needs assessment report.

Nashua Community Health Assessment September 2013 to January 2014 Worked with client to d^elop appropriate
protocols for focus groups with targeted segments of population, varying fî om topic-specific issues, to general health
issues. Facilitated and summarized focus group fmdings.

NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Program Focus Croups April 2012 to June 2012 Convened, facilitated, and
summarized findings of four market research focus groups around promotional materials promoting breast and cervical
cancer screenings. Finalized a focus group script, developed relevant recruitment and logistical materials, and developed
a fmal report with recommendations for promotional materials development.

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Colorectal Cancer Screening Focus Groups April 2012 to June 2012 Convened, facilitated,
and summarized findings of two market research focus groups around six posters designed by the Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Colorectal Cancer Screening Program. Finalized a focus group script, developed relevant recruitment and logistical
materials, and developed a fmal report with recommendations for promotional materials development.

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Early Childhood Messaging Collaborative Focus Groups December 2011 to January 2012
Convened, facilitated, and summarized findings of four market research focus groups around six logos and three graphic
sets designed for the HNHfoundation-funded Early Childhood Messaging collaboration. Finalized a focus group script,
developed relevant recruitment and logistical materials, and developed a fmal report with recommendations for the logo
and graphic development.
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NH County Rankings Video Project September 2011 to December 2011 Participated in a collaborative process of the
NH State County Health Rankings Team to produce video vignettes focusing on state and local Public Health. Data
from the NH County Health Rankings and the NH State Health Report were linked to stories gathered around the state
that illustrate community actions to improve health or people impacted by improvements in public health. The video(s)
will be used to educate and motivate individuals and communities into action to improve the health of their community
and state.

Strategic Prevention Framework - Local Regional Evaluation January to March 2009 Data entry and data analysis
for surveys of four strategic prevention framework regions. Worked in SPSS to clean and analyze the data. Created
summary reports to provide to the client.

Manchester Community Needs Assessment December 2008 to December 2009 Provided logistical support to the
project by serving as a liaison between the MSAP Data Committee and the Community Health Institute team. Assigned
team roles, managed the budget, and defined key deadlines. Collected quantitative state and local data, as well as
analyzed and summarized focus group and key informant survey data. Assisted in the development and editing of the
final Needs Assessment Report.

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, New Hampshire
Member. Public Health Advisory Council, 2018-present
Advise SNHU to support its Council of Education for Public Health Accreditation application process.

NH Health & Equity Partnership, Concord, New Hampshire
Diversity and Cultural Competence trainer, April 2018- present
Participated in a train the trainer session to qualify in offering diversity and cultural competence trainings for wide range of
organizations.

Rivier University, Nashua, New Hampshire
Adjunct Faculty, September 2016-January 2018
Developed the curriculum for and instructs the online capstone for the undergraduate Public Health program.

Professional Associations

NH Public Health Association, Immediate Past President

•  Board of Directors / Executive Committee - 2012 - Present

•  Human Resources Committee, 2015 • Present

•  Communications Committee, 2012 - Present

NH Home Visiting Task Force
•  Member, 2015 - Present

American Public Health Association

•  Member, 2013 - Present

NH Public Health Services Improvement Council
•  Member, 2016-2017

COMPUTER Skills

Proficient in Adobe InDesign CSS.5, Adobe Illustrator CSS.5, Microsoft Word, Excel, and Publisher.
Working knowledge of Microsoft Access, QuickBooks, Adobe Photoshop, and SPSS.
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KEY )Q^DMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., dba Community Health Institute

Name of Bureau/Section: Public Health Program Support Services - FY19, Amendment #2

BUDGET PERIOD: SFY19

NAME JOB TITLE Proqram Area SALARY.

PERCENT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

Jonathan Stewart Project Manaqer/Director PHPS-Overall/OA $121,750 6.57% $8,000.00

Katie Robert Fiscal Manaqer PHPS-Overall/HV $71,000 39.44% $28,000.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary W3qes,,Line Item 1 of Budqet request) $36,000.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HlflVIAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

JefTreyA.Meym 29 HAZEN DRtVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
CoininUsloncr 603<27M501 1-8d6^52-334S Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-27i-4«27 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
-Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

January 22, 2018

Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

{Department of Health:and Human Services, Division of Division of Public
into an amendment with. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,

#161611-6001, 601 South Street, 2"*^ Floor, Bow,
bf-programmatic support services across a number of

by increasing the price limitation by $13,000 from $1,565,580 to
> y ̂  date of Governor and Council approval,, with no change to the
'  contract was approved by the Governor and
.  21, 2017 {Item #51). Funds being added are 100% Other Funds

the following accounts in SFY 2018 and 2019,-with authority to
;  ■ lirnitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal

Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and
■ '{{y^/EiecijtiveC^

' ' - FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED.

• V EXPLANATION

2y{The.purpose .of this request is to increase the budget for the Human Immunodeficiency
■iVirus (HlV)\PT9g^^ several program-area budgets in order to enable the vendor
- to purchase supplies, specifically Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
"test k'rts. The budget for the Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program is decreased due

■  to a reduction in^bur federal awards for the program from the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). The adjustments result in
an overall price lirnitation increase of $13,000.

.  The vendor provides a broad range of public health professional support services
including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs; developing
evaluation plans; conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning
for. large statewide conferences; sen/ing as a fiscal agent; providing'technical assistance to
local partners; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental contractors.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2

These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health
practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to New Hampshire citizens.

The overarching puipose of this contract is to better coordinate a range of public health
professional support services on a statewide basis to assure that New Hampshire residents
are served by effective iriitiatives to protect and improve the health of the pul)Iic. The Vendor
will ensure successful outcomes across this range of services and program areas that include:

. transparent and informed evaluation planning processes; high-quality educationai materials,
conferences and training programs; knowledge ̂ and skills-building among Department
; contracted agencies; timely and efficient administrative processes; and effective evaluation of
programs.

The Department procured these services as it does not have the resources available to
^ manage these specific services in-house. Support services to be provided include:

•  Environmental Public Health Tracking activities; -
•  Food Protection activities;

•  ; Lead Poisoning Prevention activities:''
•  Immunization Promotion;

•  Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care activities;
•  Maternal and Child Health activities:

•  Public Heaith Emergency Preparedness activities

This contractor was selected through a competitive bid process.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this
Agreement has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon

>■ satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and Council. No renewal request is being made at this time.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the vendor may not
vhaWsufficient Hiv'te^t kits to provide to contracted testing sites.^ This may lead to testing not

^ „.being„available_toJndividualsJo_ inform them of their HIV status.
Area served: Statewide. .

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 100% Other Funds (Pharmaceutical
Rebates). Funding for the total contract are 73% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention, HPP & PHEP Cooperative Agreements, Immunization Cooperative I
Agreement, EPHT Program, NH Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children, US EPA Lead 404G
Training and Certification, UN Health Resources & Services Administration, Maternal , Infant &
Early Childhood HomeVisiting Grant, Maternal and Child Health Grant, 21% Other Funds from,
HIV Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Agency Licensing Fees, Utility Assessment
from Safety, and 6% General Funds/ .



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

•j. <' 'fl. M 'V »K'- ^ •% 'J ' ̂ '•

Respectfully submitted,

^; ■ V ̂  s ■ v^, '
*" ^'■ ''-rj '-' ■■'i:-- '-fJ ■ * '•■

■  y,in,,;.

:  - . .' K' " ■' ■ •

Lisa M. Morris

Director

Approved b

ey A. Meyers

Commissioner

77ie Department of Health and Human Services' Miasion is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL*
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 67% Federal, 33% General

Fiscal Year.. Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
chanae)

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115,000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc . 90077410 115,000

Sub Total $230,000
I  \/.r I n Mnv nuiwiMn wVOj

HHS: DIVISION-OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS. 100% Federal .

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tide Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
cHanqe)

SFY 2018 102-50073.1 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70,000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70,000

Sub Total $140,000
05-95-90-90251

HHS: DIVISIO

IMMUNIZATION

0-5178 HEALTH A
N OF PUBLIC

1 PROGRAM 100%

ND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HU
HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE (
Federal

MAN SVS,
CONTROL,

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

. Current/

Modified

Amount (No
chanqe)

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023320 65,000
SFY_20.19 102-500731 „..-.Contracts for.Rroq Svc 90023320 -—65,000

Sub Total $130,000

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES 100% Other

BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Jot) Numt)er

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount
2018 .102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 133,800 50.000 183.800
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 113,800 113,800

• Sub Total $247,600 $50,000 $297,600
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05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD
PROTECTION 37% General, 63% Other

Fiscal Year Class / Account

(

Class Title Job Number

Current/

. Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 18.000
SFY2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 18,000

Sub Total $36,000

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBUC
HEALTH TRACKING 100% Federal

(.Fiscal Year. .(..Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SFY2018 ■  '■102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 50,000
SFY2019 :r-;102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 50,000

•V • Sub Total $100,000

,  05-95-90.901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
- HHS:\blVISION' OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD

PROTECTION 100% Federal

Fi^l .
Year

Class/' -
Account

Class Title Job Number
Current
Amount

■  Increase/
(Decrease)

Modified
Amount

SFY .
2018

. 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90003600 36,000 0 ■36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 50,000 0 50,000
Sub Total
SFY 2018 86,000 0 8.6,000

SFY
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90003600 36,000 (27,000) 9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 50,000 (10,000) 40,000
Sub Total
SPY 2019

86,000 (37.000) -  49,000

Sub Total $172,000 {37,000} $135,000

05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ACA
HOME VISITING Xd2 FORMULA GRANT 100% Federal .

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current/
Modified

Amount (No
change)

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221,990
SFY-2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221,990

Sub Total $443,980
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05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH; BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES,
MATERNAL - CHILD HEALTH 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SFY2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 24,000

•  SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 24,000

Sub Total $48,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION,
RADIOLOGICAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE 100% Other

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

SFY

2018
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9,000- 0 9,000

SFY

2019
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9,000 ■ 0 9,000

Sub Total $18,000 $0 $1^000

TOTAL $1,565,580 $13,000 $1,578,580
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: l-«00-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

February 5,2018

S

.  . • Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner . -
'..^Department of Health and Human Services

, vState pf New Hampshire
,29 Hazeri"Drive : ; ,

• ; , Concor^d,;NH 03301 •

.  . Dear Commissioner Meyers:

-This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
ihais appfdyed-your agency's request to enter into a contract with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,

V  '•'••• ; d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2018-

•; •: ' " The purpose, of this contract amendment is for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
. to continue to provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of

,  "■ , / 'public health programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing
,  ' ..training programs;-i:6nductlhg..heecls assessments; developing educational materials;

planning for large statewide conferences; and making subject matter experts available to
Departmental contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and
state-level public health practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to NH

.  citizens'.

. The funding amount for this amendment is $13,000, increasing the current contract from

.  $1,565,580, to an amount not, to exceed $1,578,580 and is effective upon the date of
Governor and Council approval, with no change to the completion date of June 30,2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Hurnan Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

incerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf
DolT #2018-029A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire
^  Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Public Health Professional Support Services
This 1' Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #1") dated this 22"^ day of January, 2018, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter •. referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and, JSI Research and Training Institute; Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit agency with a place of business at 501 South
Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304. '

WHER^S, pursuant to an agreemeht (the "Coritract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #51), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make chariges to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and ' .

WHEREAS, -pursuant [o the General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the State may modify the scope of work
and the payment schedule of the contract by writter) agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE,, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block.1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $13,000 from $1 565 580 to read-
Si ,578,580.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and
Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9330.

4^ Del^e^Budget.Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV,-SFY -18 and -
replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV SFY 18

. Amendment #1.-
5. Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPA Lead, SFY 19

and replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services -EPA Lead
SFY 19 Amendment #1.

6, Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead, SFY 19
and replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead
SFY19 Amendment #1.

Community HeaKh Institute Amendment #1
RFP-2018-OPHSJ)3-PUBLIC Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Councii approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

20
Date Name; TFujccCv^

Title; O

JSI Research and Trajping Institute, inc., d/b/a Community
Heaith In^ul

■ 1/22/18

Date ' , Name: Jbn
Titie: Regiort

th

; ■ Acknov^edgement of Contractor's signature:

art

ire

, State of Mfh/ ■ County of on 1 V]\ i ? before the
urKlersign^ officer! personaily appeared the person, identifred directly atiove, or,satisfactorily proven to

; be the person vvhbse narrie is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
■ capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Hubiic or Justice of the Peace

tour-nvJ
Name and Trti^ of Notary or Justice of ̂ e Peace

COURTNEY A. CASTRO, Notary PubfloMy Commission Expires: ̂  Oommlasten Bmrnw ^

Community Health Institute Amendment #t
RFP-2018-DPHSO3^U8LIC. Page 2 of 3



New Hafnpshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date 71 Lp
/y^iLA-|

Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that .th|j,foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Harnpshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OFJHE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Health Institute
RFP.2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC

Amendment #1

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire beparimont ol' health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name; d/b/a Community Health institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services ■ HIV

Amerwlmentfl

Budget Period: SPY 2016

saia^^ages
. Employee ̂ netitszr

3. consultants

4. Equiprnent: (incIudM Rentals, Repair & Maintenance,
Purchase''& Depredation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education, Lab.
Phamacy, Medical, Office); •
e. Travel .- - • ■ . . •

7. , occupancy ..., • ^

6. Current &(penses (inclu^ Telephone, Postage.
Subscrljjtions, Audit & Liegal, insurance. Board
Expenses)'
9.' - software

1(l. Marketing/t^ommuntcations
11. statr Education and Training

12.. Subcontracts/Agreements
19. other (specific details rnandatory):

•HP<9 Memt)er Keimbursement

Conrerence support

Prevention supplies

Digital storytelling

Meeting Expenses

Website Maintenance

Subscription Services
Other Professional Support Services

Special Projects
InfonriBtion Sysioms

HR

Gen Ad/nin
Payroll end Accounting

IT.

S  14,290.98

T

1,165.64

$  1.660.39

1  500.00
3,760.76

2,820.60

752.16

1—7mm
1—7mm
T^mmm

Tmm
500.00

1—mm
1  10.000.00

$1,653.73

T

$ 1.541.92

$ 1,541.92

$  1,541.92

$ 1,541.92

.1^

$ 14,290.96

$  1,165.64

$  1,860.39
500.00

Tfmw

$  2,620.60

T

TT>^d«rai!^lpprov©?
Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement (NICRA)
for JSl Research end
Training Institute, Inc.

includes fringe t)enefits
(3S% of salary) and other
gerwral operating costs to
support project activities
indudfng occupancy,
equipment, general office
supf^ies.
telecommunlcatiorts and

other current ei^ervses.

T
1  75516
T
T
T
T

.1.666.66
1,666.66

$ 66,600.00

T 25,000;00

6,666.66

•Information systems,
-accounting and payroll, ,
.human resources and staff

.development, and general
, administrative support.
^ costs. The approved basis
'for application of the
'NICRAis,on talary/wegee
'only Including holiday, sick
'and vacation.

1—mm
T
T
imm

10,666.66
1  1,653.73
T
T

1,541.92

1,541.92

T

1,541.92

1.541.92

TOTAL

Indirect As A i^ercent of Direci

Contractor Initials:

RFP-2016-OPHS-03-PUBLIC

Page 1 of 1 Date; 1/22/18



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support Services •
Budget Request for: CDC Lead

Amendment #1

Budget Period: SPY 2019

LitikS ■" r."""
1. lotal Salary/Wages $  2,802.20 5 6  2,802.20 The federally aooroved
I. tmpioyee Benetrts $  1.064.84 $ $  i ,664.84 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants i i J  - Kate/agreement (NiCKA)
4. Equipment (includes Rentals, Repair
& Maintenance, Purchase &
Depredation) $ ■ 86.87 5

~ for JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.

«  ftAA7 includes fringe benefits
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical,
Office) $  140.11 $

general c^ratlng costs to
support project actlvtties

$  140.11 indudlng occupdncy.
B. 1 ravel ' $ $ 4  - equipment, general office
I. uccupancy $  280.22 i 4  280.22 supplies.

8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions. Audit
& Legal, Insurance. Board Expenses) $  210.15 $

leiecornrnunicaiions ana
. other current expenses,

information systems,
accounting and payroll.

9. Software $ i '  • develoomant and general
iu. MarKeting/communications $ i S  - administrative support
11. Staff Education ana (raining $  56.04 $ 4  56.64 costs. The approved basts
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $  . tor application of the
IS.- Other-(speofic details mandatory): $ 4 4  . NicKA IS on salary/wages

Educational Outreach 5  3,900.01 4 4  6,S66.6l Including holiday, sick
Information Systems ^  . and vacation.

HR t . $  114.89 $  114.89
Gen Admin i 6  114.89 4  114.89

Payroll and Accounting $ S  114.89 6  114.89
$ Ji4.89. 4  1i4.S9

TOTAL $  8,640.44 $  469.56 T"ft.omo|

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Contractor Initials: jif.
Paga 1 of 1 Date: 1/22/18



New Hampshire Department or Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support Services -
Budget Request for: EPA Lead

Amendment

Budget Period: SPY 2019

1. Total SaiaryA/vages
-hmpioyee Benems

r*

mm

6' .- consultants

Equipment; (includes.Rentals, Repair
& Maintenance^ Purchase & '
Depreciation)'-'/'
5.".Supplies; (inciudes supplies for
Education,- Labl^ Pharmacy, Medical,
Ofifia) • ••
b. Travel,>

7.-occupancy.

8. .Current ExpensesXin'ciudes
Telephdne.'Postage, Siibiscriptions, Audit
& Legal, Insurance, Board ̂ penses)
S./- Software.
iu. MarKeting/oommunications
i v statr Education aria .training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. other (specific details mandatory):

..NELCC Meetings
Educational Outreach

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin

Payroll and Accountirig

TOTAL;

indirect As A Percent or Direct

6.629.12

540.60

$ 872.25

1  1.744.51

1,308.39

348.90

7,500.00

749.98

1  37.nd.oo

T
1  71T25

715.25

1  7T5:25
1

rnrwTJT
$  o.oio.n
T

540.60

$  872.25

$
$  1,744.51

$  .1,308.39

T
T

348.90

F

r
1  7,500.00

749.98

The federally approved
'Negotiated Indirect Cost
'^Rate Agreement (NICRA)
'for JSI Research and

Tralnir)g Institute. Inc.
includes fringe benefits
. (38% of salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities
including occupancy. - -
equipment, general office
supplies.
telecommunications and
other current expenses,
information systems. -.
accounting and payroll,
human resources and staff

development, and general
adrninistrative support
costs. The approved buis
for application of the

NICRA is on salary/wages
ontylncluding holiday, sick
and vacation.

1  715.25
1  715.25
I  715.25
T 715.25

T
$  2,961.0011
— y.7%'

40,000.00 I

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date; 1/22/16



5/

JeffrryA.M«yer<
C^ommissiunrr

UiM Morris. MSSW

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29 HAZE.N DRIVE. CONCORD. Ml 03301-6527

603-271-4501 l-800-(i52-3345 Eil. 4501

K»x; 603-271-4S27 TDD Arress: I •800-735-2964

Ml

• V*Yj.^' NH nivisin.v Of;
^ Public Health Services

vevtf^aaene icouongsM V*.

May 25, 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into an agreement with. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute. Vendor
#161611-8001. 501 South Street, 2"*^ Floor, Bow. NH 03304. iri an amount not to exceed $1,565,580. to provide a
broad range of programmatic support services across a numbW of public health programs, effective July 1. 2017
or upon date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30. 2019. Funds are 76%
Federal, .18% Other, and 6% General Funds.

- Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in SFY 2018 and SFY 2019. upon tf̂ e
availability and. continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS 67% Federal. 33% General

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115,000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115,000

' Sub Total $230,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70,000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70.000

Sub Total $140,000



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2

health and. social services, deft of health and human SVS HHS-

?00% Fede^l ^^^LTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROLJMMUNIZATION PROGRAM

Fiscal Year

SFY 2018

Class/Account

102-500711

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

.  SFY 2019 102-500731
Contracts for Proq Svc
Contracts for Proa Svc

90023320

90023320
Sub Total

65.000

65.000

$130,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES OEPT OF HFALTH AMn mnmakj c\/c uuc

~S ?00%omef disease'CONTROrPnTRMAcf^^^^^^
Fiscal Year

SFY 2018

SPY 2019

Class / Account

102-500731

102-500731

Class Title

Contracts for Prog Svc
Contracts for Prog Svc

Job Number

90024600

90024600
Sub Total

Total Amount

133.800

113.800,

$247,600

health and SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS-

other PROTECTO™foOD PROTECtTon TtI
Fiscal Year

SFY 2018"
SFY 2019

Class/Account

102-500731
102-500731

Class Title

Contracts for Prog Svc
Contracts for Prog Svc

Job Number

90000022

90000022

Sub Total

Total Amount

18.000

18.000

$36,000

Fiscal Year ._Cla.ss ./Account

SFY 2018

SFY 2019
102-500731

102-500731

-Class Title

Contracts for Prop Svc
Contracts for Prog Svc

Job Number

90041000

90041000

Sub Total

-Total Amount

50,000

50.000

$100,000

Fiscal Year

SFY 2018

SFY 2019

Class / Account

102-500731

102-500731.

102-500731

.102-500731

Class Title

Contracts for Prog Svc
Contracts for Prog Svc

Contracts for Prog Svc
Contracts for Prog Svc

Job Number

90003600

90038000
Sub Total SFY 20"i8

90003600

90038000
Sub Total SFY 2019

Sub Total

Total Amount

36.000
50.000

86,000

36.000

50.000

86.000
$172,000
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05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. ACA HOME VISITING
X02 FORMULA GRANT 100% Federal '

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number •Total Amount

SFY 2018 ■102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221.990

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc ' 90083200 221,990
Sub Total $443,980

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH" AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, MATERNAL - CHILD
HEALTH 100% Federal -

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 24.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 24.000

Sub Total $48,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU.OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. RADIOLOGICAL EMERGENCY
RESPONSE 100% Other

Fiscal Year Class/Account ■  Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 . 9,000
SFY 2019 .102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9.000

Sub Total 418,000
TOTAL $1,565,580

EXPLANATION

Funds in this, agreement will be used to provide a broad range of public health professional support
services including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs; developing evaluation plans;
conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences;
providing technical assistance to local partners; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental
contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to
provide high-quality public health services to NH citizens.

. The overarching purpose of this contract is to t)etter coordinate a range of public health professional
support sen/ices on a statewide basis to assure that all New Hampshire residents are covered by initiatives to
protect and improve the health of the public. The Vendpr will ensure successful outcomes across this range of
services and program areas that include: transparent and informed evaluation planning processes: high-quality
educational materials, conferences and training programs; knowledge and skills-building among Department
contracted agencies; timely and efficient administrative processes: and effective evaluation of programs.
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The Department procured these services as it does not have the resources available to manage these
specific services in-house. Support services to be provided include:

1. Environmental Public Health Tracking activities;

2. Food Protection activities:

3. Lead Poisoning Prevention activities;

4. Immunization Promotion;

6. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation and Care activities;

6. Maternal and Child Health activities;

7. Public Health Emergency Preparedness activities

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall be provided after
June 30, 20t7. and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017,
unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the stale legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennium.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, there will be a reduced capacity to
provide training to a range of public health partners on multiple health topics; host large scale conferences;
develop plans to evaluate the effectiveness of services; develop and produce educational materialsrand provide
technical assistance to local and state partners.

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human
Services web site from March 10. 2017 through April 5, 2017. in addition, bidder's conference was held on March
20,2017.

The Department received one proposal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals
with prpgra.rn specific.knowledge. The review included a.thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of
the proposals/applications. The Bid Summary Is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the
option to extend for up to two (2). additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The performance measures/objectives that.will Ije used to measure the effectiveness of the agreement
are attached;

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds:. 76% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention HPP &
PHEP Cooperative Agreements. Immunization Cooperative Agreement, EPHT Program, NH Reduced Lead
Poisoning of Children, US EPA Lead 404G Training and Certification, UH Health Resources & Services
Administration. Maternal , Infant & Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant, fraternal and Child Health Grant 18%
Other Funds from HIV Pharmaceutical Rebates..Food Protection Agency Licensing Fees, Utility Assessment from
Safety, and 6% General Funds.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

0^C(XJ2-££fc>
Lisa Morris, MSSW
OiTectcr

Approved by:
frey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Depu'lmenl of HeoUh and Hiinian Sei vices' Mission is lo join coninininUcs and (atniliin
in providing opporliinities for citizens KJ achieve hcatth and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/ doit

Deois Goulet

Commissioner

May 23,2017

Jeffrey A. Meyere, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2018-
029.

This is a request to enter into a contract with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., to
provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of public health
programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs;
conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning for large
statewide conferences; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental
contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public
health practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to NH citizens.

'snot tp_excecd $I,565,5_8P, wd is effective July.l, 2017, or upon
the date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30,2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/ik

DoIT #2018-029

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Public Health Professional Support

Services
RFP Name

1.

2.

4.

5.

6.

Bidder Name

JSI dba Community Health Institute

RFP.2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC

RFP Number

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

85% 400 340

400 0

400 0

400 0

400 0

400 0 ■

400 0

Reviewer Names

^ • Nell Twitchell. Tech

Karen Blizzard Royce

Katie Bush

Lindsay Pierce

^• Rhonda Siegel

6.
Beverly Drouin

7.

8.

9.

Jennifer Conroy. Cost

Ellen Chase Lucard

PhHip Nadeau



Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

1.2. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

1.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

1.2.1.1. At least 85% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an. evaluation sun/ey. .

1.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.2.2.1. At least 85%'of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.2.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)yMaternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.2.3.1. At least'85% of participants rate the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Coordinating Council
meetings as either "excellent" or "very good" in .an evaluation survey.

1.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

1.3.1. Food Protection Section

1.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excellent"
or "very good"

1.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.3.2.1. The traihihg modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.
1.3.2.2. At least 85%"of participants rate the'trainihg"pr^grams as'elthe'r "excelfenT" or

very good" in an evaluation survey.
1.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.3.3.1. The training module is rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.
1.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or

very good" in an evaluation survey.
1.3.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHVl/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

1.3.4.1, Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

1.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
very good m an evaluation survey.

Performance Measures
Page 1 of 3



Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1.4. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

1.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.4.1.1, At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation"survey.

1.4.2. Immunization Program

1.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.4.3.1, At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

1.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very goo^d" In an evaluation survey.

1.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics ds either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.5. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
phild Health Section (MCH):

1.4.5.1. At least 85% of learning exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.5. Provide Technical Assistance

1.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

1.5.2, Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

1.5.2.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

1.6. Develop and produce educational materials

1.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

1.6.1.1. Approval by the Division oif Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

1.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Sen/ices of developed educational
materials.

Performance Measures
Page 2 of 3



Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1.6.3, Immunization Program

1.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

1.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

1.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

1.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

1.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

1-7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
1.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
1.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

1.7.3.1. Implementation of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

1.8. Update Strategic Plans

1.8.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

1.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
State Plan,

1.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

1.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

1.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.
1.9.2. Infectious Disease-Prevention.-Investigation & Care Services Section ~

.  . . 1.9.2.1. _ .Target; 95% oLHIV.and HCVtesting and prevention supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

1.9.2.2. Nurnerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the
distribution date.

1.9.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

1.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postpartum visit project executed as directed by
DPHS.

1.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.
1.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.
1.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four individuals executed as directed by DPHS.

1.10. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that was not achieved.

Performance Measures
Page 3 of 3



Subject: Public Health Professional Support Services RFP-2018-DPHS-O3-PIJBUC
FORM NUMBER P07 (version S/8/1S)

1,

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community
Health Institute

1.4 Contractor Address

501 South Street, 2*^ Floor
Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-573-3300

1.6 Account Number
03-95-90-202510-7545,05-95-90-
902510-2239, 05-95.90-902510-5178,
05-95-90-902510-2229.05-95-90-
902510-5390,05-95-90-902510-5173,
05-95-90-902510-7964, 05-95-90-

902010-5896, 05.95-90-9020IO-5190.
4 05-95-90-201510.5299 .

1.7 Cornpletion E)ate

June 30. 2019

1.8. Price Limitation

$1,565,580

1.9 Contracting OfBcer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

1  ̂

1.10 State Agency T clephonc Number
603-271-9246

1.11 ContracjprySj^

< r
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jonathan Stewart. Director

1.13 Acknowl^enii
1 / \J i

On Z'^'u
proven to b« the persoi
indicated in block 1.12

nt: State of .County of y

il>before the undersigned officer, personall
] ̂̂ose name is signed in block 1.11, and ac

y appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
mowledged that s/he executed this dociunent in the capacity

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1.13.2 Name arhlxAleofNoiary or Justice of t^ePea^ 5ARAH E. MOECKEU Notary Pubfic
>.Commi.U<»,E;?«.Si.pta,.kerl7,2019

l.]4>^t^ Agenc^SiWtUM I.IS Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Lisa Morris, MSSW, Director

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personitel fi/app/icabfej

By; Director, On:

1.17 Approva^i)(-(he-Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) {ifapplicable)

By: 1 V On: ^ / ///' 7
1.18 Approval by the Goverfior ahd Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I, I ("Sute"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more parttculariy described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate ofNew Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall becotne effective on the date the Govcraoi
and Executive Council approve this Agreenient as indicated in
block L18, unless no such approval is required, in which cfse
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Stote Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become efTective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contnctor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contraaor for any costs incurred or Ser^ces performed.
Coniraaor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrvy, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without lunitiuion, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc

' contingent upon the availabiliry and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available apprc^riated
fiuuis. In the event of a reduction or lenninstion of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
P«yraent until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the ri^i.to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer fimds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
' payment are identified and more pariicUlarly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whate ver nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset any amouats
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which iir^se any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may Include the requirement to utilize auxiliairy
aids and services to ensure that persons with cdnununication
disabilities, including vision, bearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive infonnation from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the tcnn of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discrimitiate against employees or applicants for
cn^loymcnt because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New HaTTq)$hire or the United States'isstie to
impieinent these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the _
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
asci^ining compliance.with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to paform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that ail personnel engaged tn the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the

Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, fum or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
enqjloycc or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance ofthis
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Agreement. This provision shall survive terrninatioa of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Oflficer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

«, EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may t^e any one, or more, or all, of &e following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
ofDefauIt and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specificatioD of time, thirty (30)
days fix>m the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, tenninate this Agreement, effective two ■'
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 ^ve the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering chat the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determirres that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

•872.3 set off against Any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIAUTY/
PRESERVATION.
9T As us^ in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
cluq)ter-91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written ̂ iproval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the ^te of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Tennioatioo
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is In all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the S^ces shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and bold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties assert^ against die State, its officers
and enqsloyees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitule a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,00()per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of

-  Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Cotitracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fiimish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ceitificate(s) of
insurance for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required uixlcr this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incoiforated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior writtra
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that tbe Cohtractor is in compliance with
or excn^Jt firpm, Ac requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers'Condensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Con^nsation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement Contractor shall
ftiniish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
ihaimer described in N.H. RSA chapta 281-A and any
applicable reaewal(s) thereof which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Sute shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Condensation laws in connection with the performance of tbe
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No"failurebrtbcStiteTo' '
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be dccrj^Twai^cYofitrnghtslwth~feg5ii'tolharE^t^f
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default No express
failure to enforce any Event of Defeult shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of this Sutc to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any ttoticc by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by Ac Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances purstiant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
Thjs Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of tbe State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns, Tbe wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favorofanyparty.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22; SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of tbe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining

• provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between tbe parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they

will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the Senrlces

described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and exper^diture
requirerrients under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30,2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services
has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019
bienhla.

2. Scope of Services
The Contractor shall:

2.1. Provide a broad range of public health professional support services including, but not
limited to; developing and implementing training programs; conducting needs assessments;
developing educational materials; planning for large statewde conferences; and making
subject matter experts available to Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS),

. pivision of-Public Jrleaith Services (DPHS) contractors.

2.2. Increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners .to provide
high-quality public health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across
this range of services and program areas that Include: transparent and Informed community
planning processes; high-quality educational materials, conferences and training programs;
knowledge and skllls-bulWing among DPHS contracted agencies; timely and efficient
administrative processes; and effective evaluation of programs.

2.3. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

2.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for ongoing
committees/planning groups as defined In Attachment F.

2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.4.1. Provide logistical support to the New England Lead Coordinating Committee (NELCC).
This includes up to 12 regular meetings of the full NELCC and up to 2 of committee/
workgroup meetings per year. Information about the NELCC Is available at;
http://www.newenglandlead.org/.

JSI Research & Training irwlilute. Inc. BxNbit A Cortrsdor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

2.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking ^ ————

2.5.1. Provide logistical support to host up to lO meetings with Regional Public Health
Networks to gather feedback on the EPHT Data Portal.

2.5.2. Provide logistical support for up to 5 focus groups to conduct user research of EPHT
data and projects.

2.6. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

2.6.1. Provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG). This includes up to 6
regular meetings of the full HPG and up to 30 of committee/workgroup meetings per
year. More information about the HIV HPG Is available at; nhhiv.org. \

2.7. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home VIsiUng Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and Child
Health Section (MCH);

2.7.1. Provide logistical support to quarterly conference calls for three, peer-based caucuses.
The caucuses will be role based (e.g. supervisors, home visitors, and quality
improvement staff).

2.7.2. Provide logistical support for the Home Visiting Coordinating Council at least quarterly.
This group serves as the MIECHV Advisory Group and Is made up of collaborating
partners and others in the state-wlth an Interest and background in home visiting.

2.8. Develop and Implement Training Programs

2.8.1. In consultation with DPHS subject rnatter experts, develop and/or Implement training
programs based on adult learning theories that use various training modalities (i.e.
classroom, web-based, training of trainers, etc.) to maximize the reach of these
programs.

2.8.1.1. Food Protection Section (FPS):

2.8.1.1.1. In cdnsiiltatibh vrtth Food Prdtedion Staff develop trarriinj"cuni^la for tht^
discrete audiences:

2.8.1.1.1.1. DPHS FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) inspectors in
municipalities that regulate FSE. A list of these niunicipalities is
available at:

http.7/www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/fp/documents/selfinspect.pdf
2.8.1.1.1.2. Staff from state agencies that conduct food safety inspections as one

component of a more comprehensive operational inspection. This
includes Department of Emnronmental Services Youth Camp inspection
staff, DHHS Hearth Faalities Licensing staff (which inspects child care
centers, nursing homes and assisted living facilities).

2.8.1.1.1.3. Food Service Workers including, but not limited to workers in
restaurants, retail food stores, schools, arrd caterers.

2.8.1.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness;

2.8.1.2.1. Develop and implement training programs for two discrete audiences:
2.8.1.2.1.1. RPHN emergency preparedness coordinators

JSI Research 4 Training msttute, Inc. exWwiA
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Now Hampshiro Dopartmont of Hoatth and Human Sorvlcos
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

2.8.1.2.1.2. Local municipal officials, healthcare preparedness personnel,
volunteers and others engaged in regional PHEP planning and
response.

2.8.1.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program;

2.8.1.3.1. Plan and Implement the 1-day Renovation, Repair and Painting Training
programs In New Hampshire's highest risk communities using the US
Environmental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.8.1.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHVyMaterna!
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.8.1.4.1. In consultation with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs
assessment for the 11 MIECHV contracted home visiting sites.

2.8.1.4.2. Develop and implement an annual training plan (which will include site
specific training plans), including evaluation, from the information garnered
from the training needs assessment. At a minimum, ten (10) training
accessible opportunities should be offered per MIECHV funded home visiting
site per year. An opportunity is defined as a pre-existing training, which the
contractor pays home visiting staff to attend (can be out of state) arid
trainings which are provided by the contractor. These can be offered
electronically (webinars, etc.) or in-person.

2.9. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

2.9;i, In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for
conferences as defined by the DPHS In the original Request for Proposal.

2.9.1.1. . Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.9.11.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the NELCC's annual conference
for up to 250 attendees. Provide logistical and planning support for four
regional dinner meetings for up to 120 attendees each.

2.9.1.2. Immunization Program

2.9.1.2.1. Provide logistical support for the annual Immunization Conference for
approximately 400 attendees.

2.9.1.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.9.1.3.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the annual NH Statewide
Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.9.1.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.9.1.4.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the bi-annual NH STD, HIV,
Hepatitis. TB conference for up to 250 attendees. Planning support includes
provision of continuing education credits.

'  2.9.1.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (M1ECHV)/Matemal
and Child Health Section
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Now Hampshire Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

2.9.1.5.1. Provide logistical and planning support, Inciuding evaluation, to semi-annual
conferences-ieaming exchanges (faii and spring) for up to 55 staff at
MIECHV contracted sites. The spring 2018 training wiil focus on Healthy
Families America required content training for continued certification. The faii
training 2018 will be based on findings from the needs assessment.

2.9.1.5.2. Provide logistical and pianning support for at ieast two half or full day in-
person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.10. Provide Technical Assistance

2.10.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.1.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide technicai assistance to
three discrete groups directed toward their meeting the national standards
described in the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's (CDC) Public
Health Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011) and subsequent editions:

2.10.1.1.1. DPHS/Emergency Sen/ices Unit (ESU) preparedness staff
2.10.1.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators at the 13 organizations funded by

DPHS to provide Regional Public Health Network services. TA will be
available to both individuals and as a group.

2.10.1.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps units recognized by the registered with the U.S.
Surgeon General. Office of the Civilian Volunteer Medical Reserve Corps, to
support recruitment, training and deployment of the MRC volunteers.

2.10.1.2. Infectious Disease PrevenUon. investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.2.1. In consultation vrith DPHS subject matter experts. Identify and coordinate the
availability of technical assistance providers to DPHS contractors and service
provider agencies.

2.10.1.3. Develop and produce educational materials

2.10.1.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or produce
®^"cat'onal materials on topics determined by DPHS staff.'Ali materials shall
be developed in accordance with CDC recommendations contained In Simply
Put Guide to Developing Eas>To^Uridefst^ Materials7CDC'juiy2010iavailable at: http5://www.cdc.gov/healthiiteracy/pdf/Simply_Put.pdf

2.10.1.4. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT)
2.10.1.4.1. Develop educational materials targeted to public health professlorials,

emergency preparedness officials, and local partners to inaease knowledge
and understanding of the EPHT program at the state and local levels.

2.10.1.5. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)
2.10.1.5.1. Develop educational materials in collaboration with the HHLPPP to target to

clinicians, contractors, and families to increase knowledge and understanding
of best practices relative to Screening and Management Guidelines, lead-
safe work practices, and keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.10.1.6. Immunization Program

2.10.1.6.1. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the Immunization Information System (IIS).
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2.10.1.6.2. Develop educational materials targeted towards Increasing awareness
related to the benefits of Immunizations across the lifespan.

2.10.1.7. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1-7.1. In consultation with DPHS, maintain and update the NH HIV Planning Group
(HPG) website.

2.10.2. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

2.10.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop evaluation plans that
clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
rneasures.

2.10.2;2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.2.2.1. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects that meets
criteria outlined by CDC and fulfills federal requirements. This document will
facilitate programming planning, implementation, and evaluation.

2.10.2.2.2. Develop and Implement a plan to evaluate previously funded HHLPPP
projects that addressed disseminatiori techniques and understanding of the
2015 Lead Surveillance Report and the Childhood lead Screening and
Management Guidelines.

2.10.2.3, f/atemal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MlECHVyWatemal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.10.2.3.1. Implement current MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan
2.10.3. Update Strategic Plans

2.10.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, update pre-existing strategic
.. -plaos-lhat dearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and

performance measures.

2.10.3.2. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MlECHVyMatemal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.3.2.1. Update the 2010 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.

2.10.4. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

2.10.4.1. As directed by DPHS staff, serve as fiscal agent to maximize the efficient use of
resources as follows:

2.10.4.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.4.2.1. Enter into up to 3 mini-grants with vendors funded by DPHS to provide
Regional Public Health Networks services. A list of currently funded vendors
is available at: http://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/rphn/index.htm.

2.10.4.3. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.4.3.1. Reimburse costs incurred by approximately 5 public members of the HPG to
attend out-of-state conferences identified tjy the DPHS and mileage costs to
attend in-state meetings. The purpose is to increase the knowledge and
skills of the public members of the HPG.

2.10.4.3.2. Procure prevention supplies as determined by the IDPICSS.
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2.10.4.3.3. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to provide
consultation and technlcai assistance on the production of a digital
storytelling project, including coordination, development and implementation
of a digital storytelling workshop; production of a digital storytelling electronic
file for up to eight stories and training of participants In conducting an
engagement session with stakeholders.

2.10.4.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.4.4.1. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to procure E-
Studio, a web-based collaboration system cumently In use at DPHS.

2.10.4.4.2. Enter into mini-grants with up to 13 Medical Reserve Cor^ units to build
capacity to staff ernergency response fadiities during public health
emergendes.

2.10.4.4.3. Entpr into subcontracts with up to 4 individuals identified by the DPHS to
paitdpate in radiological emergency planning, training and exerdses to build

.  staffing capadty to respond to radiologicai emergencies.
2.10.4.5. Matemal, Infant and Eariy Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHVl/Matemal

and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.4.5.1. Support at least two MiECHV funded home visiting agency staff selected by
the DHHS to attend the annual MIECHV grantee conference.

2.10.4.5.2. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to research and
Identify methods to increase utilization of postpartum visits by home visiting
families.

3. Staffing

The Contractor shall: .

3.1. Provide suffident staff to perform ail tasks specified in this Contract and shall maintain a
level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out ail of-the functions, requirements, roles.

-  and duties in a timely fashion to meet the scope of work - ■ • —

3.2., Ensure staffing structure includes a contract administrator to administer all scopes of work " "
relative to this Contract, as well as progress and finance reporting.

3.3. Ensure that across all funded positions, in addition to subject matter expertise, there is a
combined level of expertise, skills and ability to understand data; use data for planning and
evaluation; community engagement and collaboration; group facilitation skills; and IT skills in
order to function as a team, ideally with complementary skill and abilities across these
foundationai areas of expertise and abilities.

3.4. Ensure that personriel are available during normal business hours, at a minimum Monday
through Friday. 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.

JSI Research 4 Training Institute. Inc. E*hlbHA
d/b/a Community Health Institute Contfactor Initials
RFP.2018-DPHS^3J»UBLIC PaQeSodO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

4. Outcomes I Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

4.2. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

4.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

4.2.1.1. At least 65% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either 'excellent' or
'very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
'excellent'or "very good" In an evaluation survey..

4.2.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.2.3.1. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
'excellent' or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Coordinating Council
meetings as either 'excellent' or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

4.3.1. Food Protection Section

4.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excelienf
or "very good'

4.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either 'excellent' or
'very good' In an evaluation survey.

4.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.3.2.1. The training modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

4.3.2.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either 'excellent" or
'very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.3.3.1. The training module Is rated as either "excellent" or 'very good" by DPHS.

4.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.3.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHVyMatemal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

4.3.4.1. Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

4.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either 'excellenf or
"very good" In an evaluation survey.

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc. EtftlbitA Contractor InHJala
d/b/a Communtty Health Institute er n-? -t
RFP.201MPHS-O3-PUBLIC Page 7 of 10 Oatt^laU



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

4.4. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

4.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2. Immunization Program

4.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.4.3.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

4.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
^^f®''®nce logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.4.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHVyMatemai and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.4.5.1. At least 85% of learning exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference log[s_tic3 as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey. -

4.5. Provide Technical Assistance

4.5.1. Public Heaiih Emergency Preparedness

4.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.
4.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

4.5.2.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met
4.6. Develop and produce educational materials

4.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.6.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

JSI Research 4 Tralnlnfl Institute. IfK. ExhibiiA Contractor Iniiato
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP.2018-OPHS-03.PUBLIC Page Sol 10 OaleSZiD
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Exhibit A

4.6.3. Immunization Program

4.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

4.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

4.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.

4.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.7.3.1. Implernenlatlon of at least 90% of the curreht.MIEGMV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

4.6. Update Strategic Plans

4.8.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.8.1:1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
State Plan.

4.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

4.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.

4.9.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.9.2.1. Target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution k>g within one week of distribution.

4.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the
distribution date.

4.9.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH);

4.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postpaitum visit project executed as directed by
DPHS.

4.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.

4.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collak)oration system executed as directed by DPHS.

4.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four individuals executed as directed by DPHS.

JSI Research & Training Institute, tnc. - Exhibit A Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Irtstihjte
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New Hampshire Deparlment of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

4.10. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that was not achieved.

5. State and Federal Laws
The Contractor shall:

5.1. Be responsible for |»mpliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

5.2. Publications funded under this contract shall be responsible to adhere to the requirements In
Exhibit C Special Provisions, Paragraph 14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to quality health services and provide culturally
and linguistically appropriate services and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special
Provisions, Paragraph 16. Limited English Proficiency (LEP).

5.4. DHHS recognizes that Contractors may choose to use subcontractors with specific expertise
to perform certain services or functions for efficiency or convenience. However, the
Contractor shad retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s) for any
senricw required by this Contract that are provided, in whole or In part, by a subcontracted
agericy or provider, and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special Provisions,
Paragraph 19. Subcontractors of this Contract.

5.5. Adhere to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act requirements to maintain
the confidentiality of protected health Information provided by individuals who contact the
poison control center in Exhibit I Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are annually achieved and
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

JSI Research & Training (nsUtute, Inc. &MbKA Contractor Initial
d/b/a Community Health Inatitute v
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public HeaKh Professional Support Services

Exhibits

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract Is funded with Funds from:

1.1.1. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.069, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TP000535,

1.12. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.889, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # U90TP000535.

1 ..1.3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2013 Cooperative Agreement Application for the
Immunization. Vaccine for Children, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.539,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 23IP000757,

1.1.4. US Centers for Disea^ Control and Prevention, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program -
Network Implementation, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.070, Federal
'Award Identification Number (FAIN)# NU38EH000947,

1.1.5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, NH - Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.753, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#NUE1EH001271.

1.1.8. US Environmental Protection Agency, Lead 404(g) Training and Certification, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA#) 66.707, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #99151215.

1.1.7. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration.
-Catalog of Federal-Domestic Assistance (CFDA#) 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#X10MC29490.

1.1.8. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.994, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) # BO4MC30627. - .

1.1.9. Other Funds from .Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

1.1.10. General Funds.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall t>e made monthly as follows;

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of
this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item.

2.2. The (^tractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfoctory to the State by the twentieth worVing day of
each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior
month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to
initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and ser^ces.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Profeaslonal Support Services

Exhibit B
2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds are available. Contractors will
keep detailed records of their activities related to OHHS-funded programs and services.

The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37.
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbillinQ@dhh8.nh.Qov. or Invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Administrator .
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health.Services

29 Hazen Drive - '

Concord. NH 03301
.  : ••.iV'

Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as Identified in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 16 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by vyritten agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Coundi.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
i/tia Community Health Institute -
RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLIC
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,

Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health institute

Public Heaith Professionai Support

Services • Public Health Emergency

Budget Request for Preparedness
(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SFY2018

-W

UMttam '•/'I'-".
Direct"

Increcneniai
InSlracT
FtXMt

TOT
:  :.r

•T 0.4' ' JMBI
approved

'Negotiated Indirect Cost
' Rate Agreement
'(NtCRA)forJSI
Research and Training

- Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of
•salary) and other
•general operating costs
.to support project
activitjes including
occupancy, equipment,

^ general office supplies,
telecommunications and

other current expenses,
information systems,
accounting and payroll,
human resources-and

staff development, and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NICRAison

saltfyfwagee only
.including holiday, sick
land vacation.

1. Total Salary/Wages
2. Employee Benefits~
3

1  18,956.87
. Consultants ,
4. Equipment (Includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation)
5. SuppHes:'(includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office)

1,546.48

$  2,700.88

6. Travel

7. Occupai^
8. Current Ei^nses (tndudes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses)

1,000.00
4,988.65

9. Software"
10. Marketing/Communications

3,74'1.48

1'1. Staff Education and Training
12. SubcontractyAflreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

997.73

Web-based CoUaboration System
Preparedness Conference Support

Infomation Systems

1  13,000.00
1  10.000.00
T

HR

Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting

$ 2,045.35
$ 2,045.35

2,045.35
2,045.35

! 45,M8.5^
T^,956.87

$  1,546.48

$  -2,700.88
$  1,000.00
S 4,988.65

$  3,741.48

5

T
997.73

T
$ 13,000.00

$ 10.000.00
$  2,045.35
$ 2,045.35
$ 2,045.35

%  2,045.35

TOTAL

indirect As A Percent of. Direct 77%

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1 Date: 'jlZ^ln



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Services • Public Health Emergency

Budget Request for: Preparedness

'  (NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Undittsm
i. Total ̂ aiaryywages»Y/waQ«

1 Consultants
2. Employee Benents

iltar

Plrea
jncfomsnt^

4. Equipment (includes Rentals, Repair
A Maintenance. Purchase &

Supplies: (includes supplies for
Eduratlon. Lab, Pharmacy. Medical.
8. Travel

i. Current Expenses (includes
Telephdne. Postage, Subscriptions, Audit

a  Expenses)
10. Mafketing/communications
11. Staff Education and Training'
•"l ^ubcontracts/Agreements

Oth

I 49.gfi7.55

Indirect

Fbi^

1  18,957.28

$ • 1,546.52

2,698.97
1,000.00

1  4,988.76

T
3,741.57

997.75

specific details mandatory):er

Web-based CoHabofation System
P

13.000.00 S 13.000.00
reparedness Conference Support

I
10,000.00 10,000.00

nfomation Systems I  2.045.39 2,045.39
$  2,045.39 2.045.39

Gen Admin 2,045.39 2.045.39
Payroll arid Accounftng f  2.045.39 2.045.39

TOTAL
$115,000.00

Cort
Twssrss
$ 18.957.28

$  1,546.52

$  2,698.97
$  1,000.00
$ 4,988.76

$  3,741.57
T
T
1  997.75

The federaliyappro^
'Negotiated Indirect Cost
' Rate Agreement

■(NICRA)for JSI .
Research and Training

'Institute, Inc. includes
fringe benefits (3814 of

■salary) and other
general operating costs
to support proiect
activities including
occupancy, equipment
general office supplies,
teiecdirrununicatlons and
other cunsnt expenses,
information systems,
accounting and payroll,
human resources and
staff development, and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NICRAVon--^ ••
aafaryfwagea only
Indudihg hdlld^Tsick '
lend Yacatign

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of HeaHh and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services - Hospital Preparedness

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2018

UheKem
1. Total Salary WagesryWages

Direct, r"
Ineremehtil

Indfrect

Fboid
I Method fw

Coict

2. Employee BeneBenefi

3. Consultants
ts 1  4.102.75

4. Equipment (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) 334.70
5. Supplies; (Includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy. Medical, Office)
6. Travel

639.83

7. Occupancy
250.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)
9

8  1,079.67

809.76
. Software

10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatoTy):

Medical Resenre Corps Mini-Grants
Inhrmation Systems

m
Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting

TOTAL

inoirect as a Percent or Direct

215.93

T
$  50.000.00

T

15

T
$ 442.67

$ 442.67
$ 442.67

$ 442.67

81,770.68
m

8 4,102.75

T

334.70

639.83

250.00

$  1,079.67

809.76

T

1  21^
T
T
8 50,000.00
1  442.67
$  442.67

442.67

442.67

I itmM

The federally approved
'Negotiated Indirect Cost
"Rate Agreement
"(NICRA)forJSI
Research and Training

- Institute, inc. Includes

fringe t>en8flts (38% of
-salary) and other
-general operating costs
.to support project !
activities including
occupancy, equipment,

^general ofRce supplies,
telecommunlcatiofu and

other current expenses,
"information systems,
'accounting and payroll,
'human resources arKl

'staff development, and
'general adrriinlstrative
'support costs. The
-approved basis for
•application of the
-NICRAIson

aalary/wages only
jincluding holiday, sick

Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Humfln Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health InstKute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for Services - Hospital Preparedness

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Indirect Total Ji

1. Total Salary/Wages T 5 5 10,796.yfl The federally
2. Empio «e Benefits I  4.102.75 $  approved Negotiated
3. (;onsultants $ $ $  - Indirect Cost Rate

4. Equipment (Includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  334.70 $

Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research and

$  334 70 '"Stltut®*'"c.

5. Sui^lies; (includes supplies fer
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  639.83 $

■ — ■ Includes frlrjge
benefits (38% of

6. Travel $  250.00 *  nsn rw" Operating
7, Occupancy S  1.079.67 t  -

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  809.76 $

. including occupancy,
equipmerrt, general
office supplies.

$  809 76 telecommunications
9. Software i t ^  . ana otrter current
1u. Marxeting/Conimunlcauons $ $ 1  . expenses, Information
11. staff Education and Training 5  215.93 $ ' ^'j'5'93'ayslems, accounting
i 2. Subcontracts/Aoreements i "$ ^ - ■ _ and payroll, human
1J. otner (specific details mandatory): i $

'  - resources and staff

Medical Reserve Corps Mini-Grants $  50,000.00 $ i 50.000.00
Information Systems J 5  442.67

general administrative

. 5 $ -442.67-
support costs. The

Gen Admin 5 5  442.67
Payro//.and Accounting 5 - - . i MHi-

$ $
TOTAL 1  t i.77«r

Contractor inltialattiata;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,

Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services •Immunization
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

ENre<^ "
bieifamer^
5SB.2i5.7ft

(ndlropt
Fb»d;

t stimM The federairy approved

Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research and

TraNng Institute, Inc.'
includes fringe benefits
(38S of Mlary) and other
generd operating costs
to support project
activities Including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies,
telecommunications and

other cunent expenses.

Information systems,
accounting and payroll,
human resources and

staff development, and
genera! administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the NiCRA
is on salary/wages only
including holiday, sick
and vacation.

1. Total Salafy/Wages'
2. Employee eenefe"
J. Consultants

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintartance. Purchase & Depreciation)

$ 11,483.52

936.82

5., Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6... Travel , •

$  1,510.99
1  T-

/. 6ccupancy
8. Current Borises (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Iftsurance. Board Expenses)

$ 3.021.98

9. Software"
10. Mark^ng/Communiwtions
11

$ 2,266.47

. Staff Education ar>d Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific oetalls mandatory): 2019
NHIP Conference

•$ 5,000.00
1  604.40
T

$ 5,000.00
Jnformation Systems

Gen Admin

Payrot! end Accounting

T
TOTAL

indirect As A Percent of Direct
I ftd,643.5ft

T
T

$1,239.01
$1,239.01
$1,239.01
$1,239.01

T
14,556.64

ft.m

$ 11,483.52

936.82

$  1,510.99

$  3,021.98

$  2,266.47

$  5,000.00
604.40

$  5,000.00
$  1,239.01
$  1,239.01
$  1,239.01
$  1 >39.01
T
I 65,666.66

Contractor Initials:
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for Services - Immunization

(ivame of RFP) "

Budget Period: SFY2019

Unettem

Its

Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)
5. Software^ $ 2.266.47

5.000.00 5.000.00
Informelion Systems 5 1,239.01 1.239.01

HR
1,239.01

Gen Admin $ 1.239.01 1.239.01
Peyroil and Accountino 5 1,239.01 039:01

TOTAL

ercent of. Directrect

11,463.5^Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement

"  '(NICRA)forJSt

2.266.47

936.82 Research and Training
'  ■ Institute, Inc. includes

510 99 ̂ "9® (3®* of'—^ salary) and other general
■555^5^ operaUng costs to
'  support proiect activities

including occupancy,
equipment, general

^office supplies,
tBlecommunlcatlons and

5,000.00 other current expenses,
604.40 information systems,

accounting and payroll,
human resources end
staff developmenL and

'general administrative
-support costs. The
•approved basis for
•application of the NICRA
.i^on ealaiyheagee only

tsmM

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date; 0 2^, )-7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human ̂rvlces

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/ContractorName: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request fon Services - Pharmaceutical Rebates

(NamoofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2016

Direct ;. indirect ) Tyttd Uoet^ Method fc
IncrwifMital Fba4

1. Total Salary/Wages S 37.607.84 $ $  37.607,84 The federalty
employee Benefits . S 14,290.96 $ $  14.3^.'^8 approved Negotiated

i. Consultants 5 $ .  . indirect Cost Rate

4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) S  1,165.84 $

Agreement (NICKA)

$  1 165 84 fPr <iSI Research
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab, Phamiacy. Medical, Office) S  1,680.39 $

■  and Training

$  1.880.39
6. Travel . . . , $  .1,500.00 s $  1,500.00. CJnflti nnTTrif
7. Occupancy $  3,760.78 i

■a—— benefits (38% of
0. CurrenI Expenses (includes Telephone, '
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  2,820.60 $

general operating
costs to support

$  2,820.60 oroiect activities
9. Software $ t  - $  ' . Includlna occuoancv.
10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $  - equipment, gmaral
11. Starr Education and Trainlna i  752.16 6 6  752.16 office supplies, '
12. Subcontracts/Agreements S 5 $  . teiecommunlcations
13. Other (specific details mandatory): i 5 $  . ana outer current

HPG Member R^mbursemen 5  2,000.00 $ 1  2,000.00 expenses.
Xoflference Support %  5,000.00 4  . i  5 000 00 ''^'ermation systems.
Prevention Supplies S 12.000.00 $ I  12.00600

Digital StorytelltnQ $ ^5.666.60 $ T
Meeting Expenses 5  6,000.00 s  -■ i  6.000,60-"'^^^^

Website Maintenance $  500.00 $ i  560.00
Subscription Services

Other Professional Support Services
$  1.500.00
8 10,000.00

4  jr'^S'S. administrative
>  10.000.00 T»,..

Special Projects
InformaUon Systems

i  65173
T S 1,541.92

9  l.OOJ./J iioornvMl hA.cis frtr

HR I S 1,541.92 6  i,641.92 NiCRAiaen
Gen Admin i $1,541.92

Payroll and Accountina $ 1,541.92 $  ' 1.M1.92 indudina holiday.
$  . 5 . $  . . - - sick and vacation.

TOTAL
'  ; Aflj'

1  1

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date: ^ I ?'^■J11



New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for Services • Pharmaceutical Rebates

(NameofRFPJ

Budget Period: SFY 2019

iioe.|ism-^-^5>:' -
1  DirMt indiM Total lloca^HottioJlD
1 mcrementa) .Pbetf'

1. Total Salarv/Wages $ 3fl,64^.24 $ $  38,647.24 The federally
2. Employee Benems % 14,685.95 s S  14.684.95 approved Negotiated
3. Consultants $ { 4  - Indirect Cost Rate
4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  1,198.06 $

Agreement (NICRA)

$  1,198.06 'or JSI Research and
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Offjce) $  1,932.36 $

Training Institute,

$  1.932.36 1"=
6. Trasrel $  1,500.00 t  Isbo.oo
7. Occupancy $  3,864.72 r  - '  'Vahii Vo" end other
8. Current Expenses (includes felephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  2,898.54

1

$

costs to support
project activities

$  2,898.54 indudirto occunnnrv
9. Software $ $ $  - equipment, qeneral
1U. Marketina/Communications $ i  - $  - office suppiies,
11. Starr Education and Trainino $  772.94 $ $  772.94 telecommunications
12. Subcontracts/Apreements 5 $ $  . and other current
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ i $  . eqienses,

• HPG Member Reimbursements $  2,000.00 t 4  2,000.00 lofofmatjon systems.
Conference Support $  5,000.00 4  5 ODD 00 end
Prevention Supplies S 12,000.00 $ i  12 000 0b Feyiull. human

1 t
Website Maintenance S  500.00 $ T" ■ 500 00

-Subscription Services —1.500;00- 4 - -1.500.00--?-!"1?_L., . --
Other Professional Support Services

Special Projects
S 10,000.00
$ - 5,154.71-

A  edmlnistrative. $ e'jgjSi support costs. The

Information Systems 1
HR $

e  1,536.37 flpnllmtimi nf thA
$  1,536.37 NiCRAixnn

Gen Admin i 11.5^.57 S  1,536^7^ ularvTwaoac aniv
Payroll and Accountinp $ $1,536.37 $  1,536.37 indudina hntidfiv

$ 5  . $  - sick and vacation
TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct
16,144.4$ %  113.6M.60l

Contractor Inttials:

Page 1 of 1

'<tX



New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for Services * Food

(fi/amo of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY2018

Direct, Indirect Total- -AltoctttMiIfelhodfor
Incrementirf

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 9.577.03 5 5  9.577.03 The federaltv aooroved
2. Employ Benefits S 3,639.28 $ $  3,639.28 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants i t $  - Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (Indudas Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $  298.89 $

(NICRA) for JSI

$  296.89 ^^srch and Training
5. Supplies: (tndudes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  478:85 $

InsUluta, Inc. includes

$  478 85 ^"9® benefits (38% of
6i Travel $ i ■y — - - - - ■ salary) and other general
f. occupancy 5  957.71 $ f""'"" QcyTi -operating costs to
0. Current Expenses (indudes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  718.29 $

Includii^ occupancy. ' .
equipment general office

$  718.29 suDOlies.
9. Software $ 4 5  • telecommurricatlons artd
1U. MarXeting/Communications $ s 4  - other current expenses.
11. stair hducatlon and Trainlna $  191.54 4  - ^  i 9T54 information systems.
12. - subcontracts/Agreements 5 4 4' . accounting and payroll,
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ 4 S  . human resources and

Training Development $  569.77 $ 4  569 77 development, ana
Jnformation Systems « 5 392.66 4  392.66 fl^dral administrative

HR $ $ 392.66 4  392 66 Tlie
Gen Atimin S 4 392.66

Payroll and AccountinQ % $  392.66 4  392 66 NICRA
$ "4 -f - — Is on aalaryfwages ortly

TOTAL 1 iO,420.36 111570.64
9.6%

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date; ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JS( Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for Services - Food

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Uheltm

1. Total Salafv/Wa

2. Employee Bene'
es

3. Consukants
A. Equipment: (Includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depredation)
5. Supplies; (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office)

Travel •6.

7. Occupancy
8: Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)
9r ^jhware"
10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (spoc'ffic Stalls mandatory):

.  • Training Deveiopment
Information Systems

HR

Gen Admin

Peyroil and Accounting

pira^
bterwfierit^

TTjmr

bidirect W
Fbcbd

TTSms

272.52

439.55

879.10

659.34

175.82

$ 2,000.00

T
T

$ 360.43
$  360.43
5 360.43

5  360.43

T

AHocatteiv Method for

272.52

439.55

879.10

T
T

TOTAL

indtrect AS A Percent of Direct-

The federally approved
5335!45~ Negotiated Indirect Cost

Rate Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research and

Training Institute, tnc
includes frfnge benefits
(38% of salary) arvd other
general operating costs to
support project activitiea.
Including occupancy,
equipment, general office
supplies,

659.34 telecommunicatlbns end
-  other current expenses.

Information systems.

175.82 accounting and payroD,
human resources and

staff development, and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the NICRA

Is on sataryfwages only
including holiday, sidi
'ahd'^Mlidn';

2,000.00

360.43

360.43

360.43

360.43

877% -

Comractor Initials:itlals;

Page 1 of 1 Date:



New Hampshire Departniont of Health and Human Services

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services»EPHT

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2016 f

bM
Incfemehtil
I 5,453.30

Indlract;^
Flxdd ■ ■: Cbtt-"^^nun

Tobl§alaryAMac lesfy/wages
Employee Benems

3. Consultants
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depr^atton)
5

I 146162
1

. Supplies: (Includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy, Medical, Office)

200.98

6. Travel
7. Occupancy

$  324.18
1  450.00

8. Current Expenses (Includes telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses)
9

1  648:32

. Software
10. MarKeting/Communlcations

$  466.24
1

11. Staff Education and Training'
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

T

13. Other (specific details mandatciryr
Meeting Expenses

T  129.66
$ 30.000.00

Materials DevelopmenT
I

$ 4,600.00
$ 3;150.48

nh/mation Systems
HR

GenAcfrri^
Payroll and AccounUng

TOTAL
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

I 72,200.00

T

1  265.81
1  265H
$  265:81
1  265:8T

$  . $

200.98

324.16
450.00.
648.32

486.24

Vh^ederalty approved
2.463.62 N^otiated Indirect

Cost Rate Agreement
(NICRA) for JSl
Research and Training
Institute, Inc. IrKludes
fringe benefits (38% of
salary) and other
general operating costs
to support project,
activities including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies.

$  telecommunications
$  and other current
5  129.66 expenses. Information
5  30,000.00 systems, accounting

and payroll, human
resources and staff
developmenL and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NICRA Is on
salary/wages only

sBBBBBincludtng holiday, sick
50,000.00 l^nri wrfltlfYi

4.600.00
$  3,150.48

265.61
265.81
2^.81
265.81

1?^

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1 Date: .512^^



JSI Resoarch & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community HeaKh institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for; Services • EPHT

fName ofRFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019

Lfna Item

297.90

480.46

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance, Board Expenses)

sonware ^
$  720.72

ToWi;,:

960.96

2.510.64

_The federally approved
'Negotiated Indirect Cost
" Rate Agreement
'(NICRA)forJSI
Research and Training

'Institute. Inc. Includes

fringe benefits (38% of
-salary) and other
-general operating costs
.to support project
activities Including
occupancy, equipment,

.general office supplies,
telecommunications af>d
other current expenses,
Information systems,
accounting and payroll,
human resources and

staff development, and
general administrative

support costs. The

approved basts for
application of the NICRA

is on aalaryfwaqos only
Including holiday, sick
and vacation.-_TOTAL .

ercent of Direct
-5

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials;



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services - CDC Lead

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

.. Direct ;T"
tocmnientil.

Indirect:

Fixed:
TpMv. Uloca%>.M

11.206.79 The fe<ieraiiy approved
liheitefn

$ 4.259.34
1. Total Salary/Wages
2. Employee Benefit^
3. Consultants
4. Equipment': (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation)

T

347.47

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Phatmacy, Medical, Office)
6. Travel

$  560.44

T
7. Occupancy
8. 000*601 ̂ penses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance, Board Expenses)

$ 1.120.88

840.66

9. SoftwaTe
10. Marketinfl/Communicatlons
11. Staff Education and Training'
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

224.18

13. Other (specific details mandatory):
Educational Outreach $ 15.600.00

Information Systams
W

Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting

T
T

$ 459.56

$ 459.56

S 459.56

$ 459.56

347.47

560.44

1,120.88

840.66

J

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

4,259.34 Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement

^(NICRA) for JSI
Research and Training
Institute, Inc. Includes
fringe benefits (36% of
salary] and other
general operating costs
to support project
activities indudtng
occupancy, equrpmerrt,

general office supplies,
telecommunications

and other current

expenses, Informafion
systems, accounting
and payroll, human
resources and staff

de^iopment, and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NICRA Is on

salaryfvrages only
including holiday, sick

224.18

459.56

459.56

459.56

459.56

1  15.600.00

5.4%

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: O ZiJjl



Now Hampahlre Dopartmont of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • CDC Lead

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Lihe.K^ ;■
I " Plfed
hricreiiiental

; Indirect
•Fixed

2. Employee Benei^ S 4,259.34
5 $  11,208.79 The federally

$  4,259.34 aivroved Neaotiated
3. Consultants S S i  - Indirect Cost Rate
4. Equipment (Includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance. Purchase &
Depreciation) S  347.47 S

Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research and

S  347 47 Institute. Inc.b. Supplies: (includes suppiies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical,
Office) $  560.44 $

Includes fringe
benefits (38% of

«  iiMAA sNary) and Other
6. Travel $
/. uccupancy S 1,120.68 $8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions.
Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  840.66 $

including occupancy,
equipment, general
office supplies,

$  840 66 telecommunications
9. Software 6 $ $  . and other current.
iu. MarKetinq/communications 5 $ $  .. expenses, information
11. Staff Education and Training .6 224.18 $ 224 18 systems, accounting
rz. Subcontracts/Aoreements 5 ^  ̂ and payroll, human
13. utner (specific details mandatory); t $ -F —resources and staff

Educationd) Outreach $ 15,600.00 $  15,600.00
InfyrmatJon Systamft

T
' f ~ ■ general administrative1 } Aeihck support costs. The

Gen Admin1 4-^— ^approved basis for ~
▼  cirmllr^sHnn aF

Payroll and Accountinp T $-459.56. 5  459;56- NICRA k f%n' " ' '
$ $  459.56 $  459.56 Mfaryfwages only

TOTAL
indirect As a Percent or uiraef

$34,161.76 $1,638.24
L JIU.

$  36.(M>0 o^''^tJding holiday, s»tit

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public HeaKh Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • EPA Lead

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

Urieltefn
1. Total Sala

I  Dlreot.^ Indira!?
I (nwementiri Rxed:

2. Employee wne^'yee

3. Qonsuhants

fy/Wages
Benefe"

T

Equipment: (indudes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase A Depredation)
5. Supplies: (Includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Metilcal, Office)
6. travel
7. Occupancy
Sr Current Ej^nses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurar^, Board Expenses)
9. SoftwaTe"
10. Mafketlng/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training'
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific stalls mandatoTyF

NELCC Meetings
-Educationai Outreach

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting

TOTAL

I  I

727.31

$ 1.173.08

$ 2,346.15

$  1.759.62

T
469.23

$ 6.750.01
.$ ^.550.00

T1  :

T

T
$ 961.92
$ 961.92

$  961.92

$ 961.92

■55W57
"TSTO?

ifUiocaBpnWetiiotf for

727.31

$  1,173.08

2,346.15

1,759.62

469.23

6.750.01
550.00
961.92
961.92
961.92

T 961.92
T
I  50,000:00

The t^ederally approved
Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement
(NICRA) for JSI
Research and Training
Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits. (38% of
salary) and other
general operating costs
to support project
activities including
occupancy, equipment,
gene/a) office supplies,
telecommunications and
other cunent expenses,
information systems,
accounting and payroll,
human resources and
staff development, and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
applicedon of the NICRA,
is on ealaryrwaget
only Including holiday,
sick and vacation.

Indirect As A Percent of Direct ■m

Contractor Initials;

Page 1 of 1 Date: *5\l^hi



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JS) Research & Training Institute. Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health institute

Public Health Professional Support Services
Budget Request for: - EPA Lead

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Uno tbim
1. Total SaiaiY/Waoes

Employee BenemsZ

ENreet

Inereniental

r""5S5553rn
1

bidiract

Flxbd
T5CT

I

Vllecattpi^
(tri^

elh9dfor
Coiit

 8,445.60
T3. Consultants

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance, Purchase &
Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Medical,
lOffice)

686.98

6. Travel

7. Occupancy
T

1,111.26

57 Current Expenses (Includes
Telephone. Postage, Subscriptions,
Audit & Legal, Insurance. Board
Expenses)

1  2,222.53

9. Softwate"
10. Marketing/bommunlcationr

1,666.69

11. Staff Education and Training'
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (specific oetaiis. mandatory):

NE

T
444.51

T
LCC Meetings

Educational Outreach

8  9,000.00
550.00

- — — Information Systems
HR

%

-Gen Admin

Payroll end Accounting

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

T

T
$ — 911.24
J  911.24
$—911.-24

911.24

i  46,885.641 $

$  6,445.60

1  ̂

686.98

S  1,111.26

$  2.222.53

$  1.666.89

444.51

T
$  9,000.00
$  550.00

9riZ4-

911.24

^  911.24 inrJiiHlnn
911.24

The federally approved
Negotiated Indirect
Cost Rate Agreement
(NICRA)forJSf
Research and Training
Institute, Inc. Includes

fringe benefits (38% of
salary) ar>d other

general operating costs
to support projisct
activities Including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies,
telecommunications

and other current

expenses, information
systems, accounting
and payroll, human
resources and staff

development, and

general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NICRA"is"oh

•alaryfwages only
includirig holiday, sick
and vacation.

$ SO.QOOioO

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date

itials:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Regional Public Health Network Services •
Budget Request for: Home Visiting

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY2018

IMMVPlreci
tncremental

rroisT

Indirect
Fbced

Tsr

The feMrany approveS
'Negotiated Indirect Cost
'Rate Agreement
■(NICRA)(orJSI

Research and Training
'Institute, Inc. ir>ctudes

fringe benefits (36% of
-salary) and other
-general operating costs
.to support project

activities including
occupancy, equipment,

_ genera) office supplies,
telecommunications
end other current

'expenses. Information
'systems, accounting
'and payroll, human
'resources and staff
'development, and
-general administrative
-support costs. The
-approved basis for
-application of the
.NlCf^ison

•alaryhvages only
^Including holiday, sick

1. Total salaryfWaaes
aasnis Bane $ 34,657.25
3. Consultants
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals,-Repair 8^
Maintenance, Purchase &,Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Medical. Office)

$-

$  2,827.30

6. Travei
7. Occupancy

S  4,560.16
1  5,000.00

8. Current Expenses (Includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
lnsuran(^, Board Expenses)

$  9,120.33

9. Software
$ 6,840.24

10. Marketinfl/Communlcations
11. Staff Education and Training

T

12. Subcontrac^Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory

I  1.824".07
1  5,000.00

Learning Exchanges

HFA Training & Supports
Information Sysfe/ns

1^,000.00
$  -6,000.00
$ 35.000.00

HR
Gen Admin

Payroll and Accounting
TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

$ 207,032.66

$•
T
T-

1
1
$ 3,739.33
I 3.739.33
$ 3,739.33

$ 3.739.33
114,957.32

■STiscm
34.657.25

2,827.30

4,560.16
5,000.00
9,120.33

6,840.24

1.824.07

T
5,000.00

1  5,000.00
6,000.00

35,000.00
3.739.33
3.739.33
3,739.33

3.739.33
I 221,990.00

Contractor Initialsitials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: 23 11



JS! Research & Training institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Regional Public Health Network Services -
Budget Request for; Home Vlaiting

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Una ttiMin

3. Consultants
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance. Purchase &

^.657.2^Negotiated Indirect Cost
_ Rate Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research and

2,827.30 Institute, Inc.
'includes fringe benefits

4 560 16 an4 other
general operating costs to
support project activities

Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions
Audit & Legal. Insurance. Board
'  I " ■ ■Software

Including occupancy,
equipment, general office
supplies,

teiecommunications and
other current expenses,
information systems.

1,624.07 accounting and payroll.

$  6,840.24 $• 6.840.24
r-0. h^arketJng/communications
V'

staff Education Trainingand V'1,824.07
Subcontracts/Ag
Oth

5  5,000.00reements
er pecfflc detail mandatory): r
ExcFianearning

rges $  5,000.00 5,000.00Scholarehlps r$  6,000.00 6,000.00HFA Training & Supcwrts $ 35,000.00 r 35,000.00
Information Systems

m
3.739.33 3.739.33
3.739.33 3,739.33

Gerj Admin 3.739.33 5  3,739.33
PayroJI end Accounting
TOTAI

3.739.33 3,739.33
$207,032.66 14.9S7;32 221.990.00

re ercent o re

5,000.00 human resources and staff
development, and general
administrative support
costs. The approved
basis for application of the
NICRA is on

salaryfwages only
Jnclu^g hpl[day,.8ick and
vacation.
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Now Hampshire Department Heatth and Human sorvices
JSI Research & Training Institute,

Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., d/b/a Community Heaith

Regional Public Health Networit
Budget Request for Services • Maternal & Child Health

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2016

pir^,
Ineremontaf

IndirscI
Plxis^ :

1. Total saiarv/wages $ $  - I - Tlie federalty approved

2. Employee Benefits $ $  - T~ -

Negotiated Indirect
"Cost Rate Agreement
•(NICRA)forJSI
Research and Training

* Institute, Inc. Includes
fringe benefits (38% of

•salary) and other

3. - Consultants $ $  - T" -

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depredation) $ $  - $ . '

5. Supplies: (Indudes supplies for Education,
Lab. Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $ $  - $ -

t Travel $ $  - $ - .general operating

7. Occupancy $ $  - X - .costs to support

8. Current Expenses (Includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal. Insurance.
Board Expenses) ' $ $  . $

project activities
induding occupancy,

^equipmenL general

9. Software . $ $  - $  . office supplies,

fO. Marftetlng/Communicatlons $ $  - $  . teiecommunlcatlons

11. Staff Education and Training $  - '$  - j  i and other current

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 24.000.00 S  - $  24.000.00 expenses. Information
13 Other specific details mandatory): $ $  -

c  ̂ sysvBnis,

$ $  -
*  oiiu pQjrmif iiuiiKait

$ $  - $
'developmenL and
-general administrative$ $  - X -

s $  • X - -support costs. The
$ $  • - -approved basis for
$ $  - X - -appDcationofthe

5 $  - $ -

NICRA Is on

-.salaryfwagea onfy
TOTAL • ♦Zr.TiM.T.l 24,000.00

Contractor Initials:
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iJew Hampshire Qopartmenl of Health and Human Service?'
JSI Research & Training Institute.

Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc.. d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Networh
Budget Request for: Services • Maternal & Child Health

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period; SPY 2019

Unollein
Indremerrtal FbtM.  fetal Salary/Waoes Coil

Empio e denehts

Consu ants
4. Equipment (includes Rentals, ̂?epalr i
Maintenance. Purchase & Depredation)
5. Supplies: (inciudes supplies for Education.
Ub. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
* Travelb.

Occupancy

Ourrent Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, SubMriptlons. Audit & Legal. Insurance.
Board Expenses) _
*' Software
0. Mar1<eting/Communlcations'
1. staff Education and Trainin

3
Subcontracts/Aflreements

.

—-----—indirect As k Percent of Direct

24.000.00

w

Th^lederali^pprow
Negotiated Indirect
Cost Rate Agreement
(NICRA)fof JSI
Research and Training

'institute. Inc. Includes
fringe benefits (38% of

■salary) and other
■general operating
■costs to support.
project activities
Including occupancy,
equipment, generai
office supplies,
telecommunlcatJons
and other current

i  24.000.00 Mpenses. information
"systems, accounting
"and payroll, human
"resources end staff
" deveiopmenl. and
-general administrative
-supportcosts. The
-approved basts for
- application of the"
NiCRAis on

fsatari^aseii on^
iiadudiaaiiQ&dai^ttk.$  24.000.00

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute,

Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Network
Budget Request for Services • Radiological Emergency

(NemeofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2016 .

Aljoeatlcn Alfmod
dniKein

Dire^ V
bicremefitil
nsrsT

Indirect

Pixdd

The federaU^pptove?
'Negotiated Indirect Cost
'Rate Agreement (NICRA)
! for JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.

'includes fringe benefits
(36% of salary) and other
•general operating costs to
•support p^ect activities
.Including occupancy,
equipment, general ofRce
supplies,
telecommunications and

other current expenses,
information systems,
'accounting and payrolJ,
'human resources and staff

'development, and general
'administrative support
'costs. The approved
' basis for application of the
'NICRA is on

■ealaryfwages only
•Including holiday, sick and
• vacation.

1. Total SalaryfWages'^lyet
3. Consultants
4. Equlprnent: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation)

2. Emplcyee ene TTSrST
1—^

15.33
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office)
6. Travel
7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions. Audit'& Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses)

$  24.73
T
1  49!^

9. Software
10. Marketing/Communications

37.08

11. ^taff Education and Training"
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

9.89

13. Other (spedflc details mandatory):
Radioloqical Emergencies Subcontracts" $ 8,100.00

T
InformaUon Systems T

HR
Gen Admin

Payroll and AccountinQ

T
TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct
$ 8,918.90

I
$ 20.28
$ 20.28
$ 20.28
$ 20.28

.$ 81.10 I $

187.91

15.33

24.73

49.45

37.08

9.89

1  B.100.00

20.28
20.28
20.28
2028

T

9,000.00

Contractor Initials
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New Hampsfilre Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., dfb/a Communitv Health

Regional Public Health Network
Budget Request for: Services - Radiological Emergency

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

ii ■ ■ 1 Olr^ ^rwd . Totat^ . Ulocattonlle^
1. 1 Dial i>aiaryfwaQes $  4d4.Sr s  . $  494.51 The federally aporoved
2. hmpioyee Benefits 5  187.91 s  ■- $  187.91 Negotiated Irvfirect

consultants 5 J  - $  ■ Cost Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $■ 15.33 $  -

(NICRA)torJSI
$  15.33 Research end Training

5. Supplies: (includes suppiies for Education.
Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  24.73 $  .

■ ■■ —Institute. Inc. includes

$  24 73 benefits (38% of
travel T" - 5  - salary) and other

/. Occupancy $  49.45 4  .
d. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  37.08 $  -

activities Including
occupancy, equipment,

$  37.08 general office supplies.
9. Software $ $  - ^  - telecommunications
10. Marketinfl/Communlcatlons $ i  • 4  - and other current
11. btan Education and Training .5 9.69 4 $  9.89 expenses, Information
12. Subcontracts/A( reements $ $  . $  . systems, accounting
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $  - $  . ana payron, human

Radioloflicat Emergencies Subcontracts $ 8.100.00 $  . T" 8,1 OO.Odr resources and staff
$ 4 ^  . development, and

Information Systems $ $ 20.28 $  ' 20
HR i S 20.28 4  20 ^8

Gen Admin i $ 20.28 t  nnoa aPProved basis fui
Payroll and Accountino 1 S 20.28 ' t 'Ixt OQ application of the

y $ 4  -
5 4  -

TOTAL 1 8,918.90 i $81.10

Contractor InitialsItials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contracbrs Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with appllcabte federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Mariner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall t>e made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall rriaintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include aJI
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with an forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as wet! as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair headng regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out

. an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, ofTicers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as etherise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract nothing
heifoin contained shall be deemed to otNlgate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service, if at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expendfture Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, In which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Enhibft C - Sp«d#l Previsions Contractoflnittafa _
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Now Hampshire Departmont of HoaHh and Human Sorvlcos

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records estabGshed herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFiDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period;
8.1. Fiscal Recads: books, records, docunients and other data evidencing and reflecting ail costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which suffidentfy and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase.requisltions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and
efiglbility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ail Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the dose of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Prograrns. Activities and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

.. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period.forretention hereunder. the _
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audft, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

.  9.2.. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract. It is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, aD payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All Information, reports; and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state taws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any pai^ of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased senrlces hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provijions Contractor I _
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the terminat'on of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the foiiowing reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment Iweunder. Such Flnandal Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
m^mum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
experises as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documertts. notices, presis releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
fequiFed.-e-.g^-the'United States Department of-Health end-Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ovmershlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,.
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, induding, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guideBnes,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produ<^ under the contract withcxit
prior written approval from DHHS.-

15. Operation of Facllltlea: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Corrtractor shall comply with ail laws, orders, and regulations of federal,
state, county and 'municipaJ authorities and with any direction of any Public OfTtcer or officers •
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the conti'actor with respect to the
operation of the Polity or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said fadlity or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms arid
conditions of each such license or permit. In' connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the fadlittes shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-

. laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights; Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - Spedal Provisions
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Fonn to the
.TV that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public granteesfewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certfflcation Form to the OCR certifying K Is not required to submit or malhtain an EEOP Non-
pmrrt organlzattons. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the '

J?<?"J;;ement. but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certrficatlon Forms are available at! http!//www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discnrnination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Coritrol and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whladeblower Protections: the
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
• Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

■  (a) This conbact and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections estabUshed at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L
112.239) and FAR 3.908. \ •

(b) The Contractor shall Inform rts employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c) in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perforrri certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
butthe Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the functjon(s). Prior to
subcontracUng. the Con^cto shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the del^ated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
W^n the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following-
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function » »
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

ExhibH C - SpecisI Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of HeaHh and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance svill be reviewed

19.5. ' DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are idenWied, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines' and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eBgible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of lime or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract the said reference shall be deemed to rhean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to lime.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Adt. NH'FtSA^Ch 541-A, for the purpose of Implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated Aereuri^r.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS; The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ExhiWl C - Special Provisions Contractor Initlalt
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS
I

'  4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

N^l^standing any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all ol)llgatlons of the State hereunder
Including without llmttaticn. the continuance of payments. In whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingwt upon conUnued appropriation or availability of funds. Including any subsequent changes to the
ajyroprfatlon or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminate, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and^e Swpe of Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services. In whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be Bable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds In the event
of a reduction. termlnaOon or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
0 withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(8) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions Account Number
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

^ ^iS'guag?^^ ̂ ^ General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its optiori to terminate the
^  Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under, the Agreement, including but not
limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and estabushes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall prompUy provide deUlled Information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any Information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communtcation and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving services
^®nsiU.^d Jo having services delivered by another entity .induding

con^cted providers or the State, the "Contractor shall provide a process for uninteroipted delivery of
services In the Transition Plan. • .

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a rh'ethod of notifying cBerils and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its Transition Plan submitted
to the Slate as described above.

3. Extension;

The Departrnem reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
^tinued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Govemor and
Executive Counal.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Gerwral Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5161-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. TlUe V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANJEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V.-Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificatjon. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505 ■

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a dnjg-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufecture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counselirtg, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon empbyees for drug abuse vblations

occuning in the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statemerit required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the empbyee v^ll
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the empbyer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receivirig notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Empbyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certiricatkin regarding Drug Free Contrector InKi.
WorXpiaca RequirementsWorXpiace Requirements r ln-i li'/
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

T.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a dnjg abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided betow the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: h tXod

Name: JpM n 5 i f K.'Ci r-.J
Title;

Exhibit D - Certification regartinfl Drug Free Contractor Initiala
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1i12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Famines under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under THIe VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:.

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or.employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, contlnuatioo, renewal, amendment, or ,
modification of any Federal contract grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sut>-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for ■
•influeiKing-or.attemptlng4o4nfluence an-officer.oremployee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its Instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

/

3  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and co^^>erative agreements) and that all 8ut>-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entenng Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to fBe the requir^certificationshall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure. . '

ir.C . d/b/A HCuIHaContractor Name:^,^^'^^ )

n
Date

|7^|n

cwoHMsnioro
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CERTIFICATION ReQARDING DgflARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESP0NSIBI1.ITY MATTERS

The (^ntr^r identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Exe^ve Ofhce of me President. ExecuUve Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regardir^ Deb'am^
Suspension and Other Responslblilty Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's

C^SSn"*' 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the following
INSTRUCTiONS FOR CERTIFICATION

^ ■ ^Son^s"et lutbeTow the prospecUve primary participant is providing the
2. The inaWlIty of a p^on to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial

o^rtiapatjon in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shafl submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
M^ld^d in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
partiapant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
tnis transaction.

Ih! ^ P maten'al representation of fact upon which reliance was placedWhen DHHS deteimined to enter Into this transaction, if it is later determined that the prospective
pnmao'P^apant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification. In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to

♦ha?Te submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant teamsthat Its «rtjfication was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of chanoed
circumstances. °

^e terrns "wvered transaction." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction, participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal" and
voiuntanly excluded," as used in this dause. have the meanings set'out in the Definitions and

Leverage sectxjns of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549- 45 CFR Part 76 See the
attached deflnltions. ' ' _ . . . . _ „

5.

6. The protective-primary participant agrew by submitting this pro^al (contract) that, should the "'
prppost covwed transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered^ansacton wl^ a pereon who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partidpation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

fwrtidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will indude the "dause titled Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exdusion ■Lower Tier Cov^d Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modifKation. in ail lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

^  ̂ansaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partidpant in a
»h that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily exdudedf^ the covered fransaction. unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A parti'dpant may

deade the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
partiapant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. NotWng contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render tn good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

EiMbll F - Certrication Ra^anfing Oebwment, Suspension Contractor
And Other Responsibility Matters —Ti ;—
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business deaiir>gs.

10. Except for transacUons authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered trahsactlon knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. InellgiUe. or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, In
addition to other rem^ies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default. *

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The proispective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactiorts by any Federal department or agency; (
11.2. have not within.a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
conne^on with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bnliery, falsification or destruction of

'  records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; '
11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposai had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. -By signing and submitting this4ower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
d^ned in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its krwwiedge and belief that it and Its principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any.of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
.  include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding DebamienL Suspension, Ineligibilrty, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without m(^rfication In all lower tier covered
transactions and In aU solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

JSi TrAiniAA'ns+itutc,
inc., d/b/f\ t'ommvyrviKx

Contractor Name: InsYSHHc,-

Date Name: JohA-HhcAl"!

Erfiibrt F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initiais
And Other Responsibility Matters
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COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRiMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANtZATIONS AND

WHiSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foilowlna
certification; ®

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrinilnatlon requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37a9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In erhployment practices or in
the delivery of sendees or benefits, on the basis of race, color, refiglon, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);
- the RehablBtation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disablBty, In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity; .
- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
govemment services, public apcommodatlons, commerdal facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;
-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does rwt Include
employment discrimination; . - .

C..F^^pt^KU.S_.J^partment of Justice Regulations - OJJDP-Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Proc^ures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
otpanizations); Exewtive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
OrgarjizatJons); and Whistleblowef protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contact Employee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

4
Î
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certiflcation:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

\h\ Q(":>eorCh ar'Vd fw'inimA
Contractor Name: IHC,., d/b|^X

^12^ n
Date Name: Wih "Vt

v'mw

Extiibll G

Contractor InitialT
CartAcaOen ̂  CcnpliMK* fv^uiivranli pwlainlng la FodMl HonOtoMnalon, Equal TrM»nani ol FHPi pMaJ
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CERTIFtCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-ChiJdren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 10. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcald funds, and portions of fadlities used for Inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to Mmply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
reprwentative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; **

1. By signing and submitting this contract the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
wrth all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: j/bja Corbmon.M

5tout'-'/-/
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^  Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABirTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.

Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.
' N '

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

\

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlil, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initis:
Health insurance PorlabMity Act
Business Associate Agreement i
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Page 1 of8 Date )/^'^



New Hampshtre Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

'• S^Qmred t)Y (.aw" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Ruje" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

'Unsecured Protected Health information" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p- Otber DefinHions - AII terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protectad Health lnfofm;^tloi^

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
inforrnaUon (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business. Associate, including but not limited to all
K^directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI tn any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;)l _^ - As-required by law; pursuant to the terms set forth ln"p^agraph~d. t^loW; Or"
III. For data aggregation purjwses for the health car^operations of Cpver^

c. To the extent Business Asscwiate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disctosure (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidenUaily and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
^sociate. In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to (he extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busirless

Exhibit I ContrBctor Initiali'
Health Insurance Foitability Act
Business Associate Agreement I _
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI plursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obliaatlorw and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecuredl
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it t}ecomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health inforrhation Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification:

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information of to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which ̂ e risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.
I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require ail of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided,under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third.party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initial

Health Insurance Portability Act
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health irrformatlon.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of recei^ng a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to futfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
^Section,164.528. . . ...

k. - In the event any Individual requests access to,-amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of temiination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protectioris of the
Agreement, to such F^HI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasibte, for so long as Business ✓
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed,

(4) ObllQations of Covered Errtltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation .
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI rnay be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506.or45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as E^^iblt (. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate.the Agreement.or-pro.vide.an..opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended:

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to 5me as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and

< Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. - • Interpretation. The-partlesagreethatanyambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. yf
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severabie.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

i3Si f?tjt'T-ttrh
Department of Health and Human Services d/bi^A CtrmtViUn lnc.h-hjie.
The State ^ T! Name of A

.Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Signatui§bf] Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Tide of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Busineas Aatodata Agreement

Page 6 of 0

Contractor Initials

Date iiziln



Now Hampshire Department of Healtti and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sut^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sunward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity .
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top Rve executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submft FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of .
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees

' 'toltavethe'Contractor's Tepresentative, asidentified In Sections 1 .i 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certi^cation:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the.NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
' Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name; d lb I r* CotnnoU.n itjj HfiUCtti Irlsh-M-e.
' / y ̂

i

Date Name:

■  Exhibil J - Certification Regerding (he Federal Funding Contnctor InHiala
Accouniabaity And Transparency Act (FFATA) CompSanc#
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: \l "7

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive <1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES. please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organizatton through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO 1 YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

"Name:'

Name:;

Name:

Name;

Amount

Arriduht:

Amount

Amount:

Amount

CLl/DHHS/n0713

EjMbIt J - Certification Rtsarding the Federal Fundirtg
Aceounlabifity And Traneparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

IMliDate


